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As the integrated one-stop LED energy management
services provider, we are committed to providing
reliable, efficient and energy-saving LED backlights,
LED lighting products as well as comprehensive lighting
energy management solutions for sizeable business
corporations and public utilities
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CORPORATE PROFILE
4w &

Being established in Hong Kong for over 30 years, Wai Chi Holdings
Company Limited (“Wai Chi Holdings” or “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is one of China’s
high-quality manufacturer for Light-Emitting Diode (“LED”) backlight
and LED lighting products. The Group is recently developing its
business in lighting energy management solutions actively and is
becoming an integrated one-stop LED energy management services
provider specializing in offering comprehensive lighting energy
management solutions for sizeable business corporations and public
utilities.

Wai Chi Holdings was successfully listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange®) on
18 November 2014 (stock code: 1305), which marked an important
milestone for the Group and laid a solid foundation for future
development. Capital strength was also being enhanced providing
the Group with better capabilities to meet any future challenges.

The Group possesses industry leading LED research and
development (“R&D”) technologies and has excellent achievements
in R&D for LED backlight products. The Group has successfully
developed over a thousand of new LED backlight products and
over a hundred of new LED lighting products in Hong Kong, China,
Taiwan and Japan, among which 56 patents were registered in the
PRC. The Group has comprehensive production facilities in Shenzhen
and Huizhou in the Guangdong province and Yichang in the Hubei
province.

The Group’s customers can be categorized into 2 main groups under
LED backlight products and LED lighting business. LED backlight
products are classified into 3 types including: 1) automobile on-board
displays; 2) television displays; and 3) other industrial equipment
displays. LED lighting business is divided into 2 types, including
commercial lighting and public lighting.
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Chen Chung Po
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

6th Floor, Liven House
63 King Yip Street
Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
43/F, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
01305
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

O-Bank Co., Limited (formally known as Industrial Bank of Taiwan)

Suites 3210-3214

32nd Floor, Gateway Tower 6
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Tower

1 Garden Road

Central

Hong Kong

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
HSBC Main Building

1 Queen’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands principal share registrar and
transfer office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

e uphold pragmatic and prudent
business management, emphasize the
flexible use of resources, and always be at
our optimal condition to respond to market
changes and explore opportunities
N PIRABERENLLSES
R ERNERER - BRI
AR EE TI5E L LR R B

Chairman Mr. Yiu Chi To
T/E BEE%E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited, its subsidiaries and
the board of directors of the Company (“Directors” or the “Board”), |
am pleased to present to our shareholders our audited annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year 2017, China’s year-on-year economic growth has
returned to an upward spiral after recording 6 consecutive years
of decline, as technology-oriented segments continued to fuel the
country’s development. While China has achieved a total GDP of
RMB82,712.2 billion in 2017, global economy also rebounded to
a much stronger and more stable position than expected in the
beginning of the year.

The development of China’s LED market is still picking up speed
while the competitive landscape in the industry remains fragmented.
Despite the on-going price wars and downward profitability trends
in some segments with low entry-barriers, automobile LED segment
has stood out as the growth driver in the industry, benefiting from
the growing number of automobile vehicles in the world, as well as

BEARE

RAREFRERREZZRERAF - HIE
REMARRESG([EE]HESE]) W
BEMRFRENEBNEE2017F12A31H 1E
FEMKEZEFEE -

R20174F » P BAE IR T B LG R RIEF
BERFETIBZEED EAOE - mEiE
ERTEDNEREREENES D - RABBEER
EERBEE2017TFEIARES2.71228E T
MEE - 2EREEERP BN T BT R
S AERE -

REILEDT 5 e B R AN B pItR - M1TER
BRRBADADEL - BE A EPIEITED
BEERBIANEN TRBE  HEXEN
EHTEHE TENE R A RE I TE A MR
KRZ2RE - BEHLEDD HEK AHENTTRE

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



the technology and safety requirements for products to be used in
the vehicles. The automobile LED market grew into a US$2.8 billion
market in 2017 and is expected to reach a growth rate of 12.45%
in the coming year, according to a report by LEDinside, an LED
information service platform and research institution.

In line with the market trends, the Group has recorded notable growth
in automobile on-board displays business segment, revenue from
which increased 116.5%, or HK$192,188,000 to HK$357,110,000
for the year under review, as compared to that of 2016. With the
automobile LED on-board displays segment being one of the main
growth drivers, the Group also achieved significant milestones in the
LED lighting service segments. Apart from secured public lighting
projects in Mexico, the Group established relationship with a client
in Germany for the provision of panel lighting products, which is
expected to favor the Group’s reputation and contribute to our
long-term revenue growth. As for the research and development
(“R&D”) achievements, the Group developed a sports ground lighting
product line featuring adjustable angles of each light which enables
larger coverage with fewer lights installed thus bringing higher cost
efficiency.

2017 Annual Report | £}
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

As the Group’s development shifted towards segments with higher
sustainability and profit margins after the cessation of smartphone
LED backlights business, the temporary growth in the revenue from
the high-tech electronic components sourcing business helps to
smoothen this transition period.

During the year, the total revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,677,966,000, representing an increase of 27.0%
as compared to 2016. Revenue from sales of LED backlight products
was approximately HK$756,075,000, representing a decrease of
0.9% as compared to 2016, mainly due to the cessation of business
in LED backlights for smartphones; revenue from sales of LED lighting
products was approximately HK$54,531,000, decreased by 4.9% as
compared to 2016; revenue from the provision of high-tech electronic
components sourcing services was approximately HK$867,360,000,
increased by 72.9% as compared to 2016, mainly because the
business was only commenced during the second half of 2016.

PROSPECTS

Global economy showed signs of recovery despite some overall
uncertainties. On the other hand, China’s stable GDP growth and its
increasing influences in the global market are definitely encouraging
factors for us as manufacturers. As China allocates more and more
resources to develop its high-tech industries and switches its export
emphasis from labor-intensive products to higher end products,
businesses with outstanding R&D capacities are expected to remain
competitive for better profitability.

Since the cessation of smartphones LED backlights segment, Wai Chi
Holdings has been aiming at higher profit margins. We will keep fine-
tuning our product mix which focuses on the automobile on-board
displays and commercial lighting products. R&D will remain a priority
when it comes to future investment. We have established partnership
with O-bank, which specializes on industrial sector and is expected
to facilitate the Group’s future cash flow and financing needs. The
Group is also actively exploring business opportunities along the
“Belt and Road” regions as the successful entrance in Germany and
Mexico boost our confidence for more overseas exposure. The past
year has proved the success of our development strategy, yet we are
aiming at even higher goals. | sincerely appreciate the supports from
our shareholders and will work hard for more optimistic returns in the
future.
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come so far on the path full of competition.

Mr. YIU Chi To BEE L
Executive Director and Chairman HITEFEFREE
23 March 2018 20183 F23H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE WL S

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Looking back at 2017, the global economy concluded with the GDP
growth for three quarters of countries in spite of the many dramatic
political events and natural disasters, symbolizing the time of recovery
from the last economic turmoil. Global trade growth was boosted
by a revival in investment, snapping back from its slowest since the
recession in 2009. Looking closely at China, 6.9% growth in GDP,
the first year-on-year accelerated growth in 7 years, was achieved
according to the National Bureau of Statistics of China. Together with
rising disposable income and consumption expenditure per capita,
China’s economy has sustained a steady growth pace during recent
years under the “new normal” scheme. It is expected that different
means to tackle industrial over-capacity will endure, so as the state
of restructuring for some industries. At the same time, “The Belt and
Road” Initiative is expected to bring new business opportunities in
regions like Southeast Asia and South Asia over the long haul.

2017 presented an encouraging development in China LED industry,
as shown by the evident from improved financial results of major
Chinese enterprises and certain international LED market leaders.
Nonetheless, conditions remained uneasy for the past year as market
saturation continued to weigh on many small-to-medium businesses.
Sizable and resourceful firms were able to tackle the overcapacity
problem by aptly refining business directions and readily catching
up with market changes. LED backlight markets for automobile and
television are expected to continue with healthy growth. Specifically,
with China being the largest automobile market, relevant demand
for LED displays of different functionalities and varieties is deemed
auspicious.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group fully embraced the new direction in 2017 after its business
restructuring in 2016, and refocused on the up-and-coming market
demands for both LED backlight and lighting products. Aiming at
profit optimization, it continued to explore the higher-margin products
while adding resilience to the business with a non-core business
segment of high-tech electronic components and products sourcing.

Total revenue for the year under review was approximately
HK$1,677,966,000, increased by 27.0% as compared to
approximately HK$1,321,601,000 in 2016. Revenue from the sales
of LED backlight products was approximately HK$756,075,000
(2016: approximately HK$762,716,000), of a slight decrease of 0.9%
due to the cessation of business in LED backlights for smartphones.
Revenue from the sales of LED lighting products was approximately
HK$54,531,000 (2016: approximately HK$57,319,000), of a decrease
of 4.9%. Different markets for LED lighting products are developing,
for this reason a significant increase in revenue is expected.

The Group recognises studious focus needs to be put on product
quality to set up solid and credible industry reputation especially after
narrowing down on high-margin products. The Group’s enterprise
resource planning (“ERP”) system has been effective in achieving
stringent cost control, engaging timely monitoring of its operation
process to promote information exchange between functions
and storing and managing operational data. The ERP system has
consistently lowered operational cost for the Group during the
manufacturing process, as well as enhanced financial and work
efficiency with a higher level of process automation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRZWLE S Hh

LED Backlight Business

The three types of the Group’s LED backlight products are: 1)
automobile on-board displays; 2) television displays; and 3) other
industrial equipment displays. For the year under review, revenue
derived from LED backlight products in automobile on-board
displays, television displays and industrial equipment displays
were approximately HK$357,110,000, HK$128,820,000 and
HK$270,145,000 respectively.

Automobile on-board displays have emerged as the focal point of the
Group’s LED backlight business and have generated notable increase
in revenue during the year under review. This product line has high
margin with bright prospect. Both in China’s and international mid
to high-end automobile markets, demand for automobile on-board
displays has surged in recent years. Automobile sales in China took
up 28% of global sales in 2016 and is expected to continue rising.
In this respect, demands for on-board displays such as central
information displays, GPS, infotainment and dashboard project are
rapidly growing. According to LEDinside’s forecast, relevant output
value is expected to rise at a CAGR of 25% from 2016 to 2020.
The Group believes that it is well-equipped with manufacturing
technologies, human capital and R&D capabilities to produce
innovative models meeting with such active market. The Group is
confident in balancing the cut-down in product mix with the promising
market dynamics of automobile on-board displays as the industry
evolves.

12

LEDE H¥75

$%@mzﬁﬁD CNEMA 1) BEBER

2)BEMRB R B3 HMb TEREER
% F@@Eﬁ LEDBXEMPREEFHEE
e BRETRSEMTIERBEERSESNBRAD
7l &#1357,110,00078 7T * 128,820,000 7T &
270,145,000/ 7T °

BEETRBCRKALASEBERNIEDE L EKE
& EREREFEERBERAER - 2R
EmfEs  mHSAISER - nFEPELBER
P AE TS BB SHIOME o R
20164 - HEKAHIHEMRIKIEEM28% A
TERTSERERT - LM E - HERE RS
(flanFh iz BRE/RES - GPS ~ ArlR&E N &
#R1R ) IH B MR SKIRRIZ NN - RIBFEFHEFLED
ORI TER] - ARBEEER 20164 £20204F
MESFIBR KB A25% - AEBRAHE
SEENRERN - ANERKIRERE S - A4l
Lﬁém@é%m%mmﬁﬁtoﬁzﬁﬁﬁ
CAREBBELOAEERE N SNED TS
%@@ﬁi@é&@é%ﬁ S

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



The sales of the Group’s television displays recorded mild decline for
the year under review. According to market research by the leading
research and analysis firm IHS Markit Ltd., smart TVs were expected
to take up over 60% of market share in the global TV market in 2017.
GfK SE, a global market researcher, pointed out in a report that

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THRZWLER S Hh
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China’s consumption is leading the smart TV trend with smart TVs as
89% of televisions sold in the first half of 2017. The Group remains
optimistic about the TV backlight market in the foreseeable future.

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31HLFE
2017 2016
20174 20164

LED Backlight Revenue HK$’000 HK$'000
Breakdown LED St Ut A BR4H Ti#x FAT %
Smartphone BT N/ATEBR N/ATER 230,508 30.2
Automobile Displays BHE B~ 357,110 47.2 164,922 21.6
Televisions EAR 128,820 17.0 144,103 18.9
Equipment Displays R T 270,145 35.8 223,183 29.3

756,075 100.0 762,716 100.0

LED Lighting Service Business LEDRRAAZHE

The Group’s LED lighting business is classified into 2 categories,
namely public lighting and commercial lighting. The Group
provides various services including products, lighting solutions
design, installation and maintenance etc. During the year under
review, revenues from public lighting and commercial lighting were
approximately HK$34,839,000 and HK$19,692,000 respectively,
observing an increase in the former of 4.7% and a decrease in the
latter of 18.1% (2016: HK$33,271,000 and HK$24,048,000).

While the Chinese government has been slow in implementing LED
street lighting, the Group began to venture out of the domestic LED
lighting market to offer public lighting projects overseas. Under the
backdrop of global smart cities, implementation of smart street lights is
rapidly rising. Europe and North America, where the Group has large-
scale business projects, will continue to be hunting grounds in this
regard. Turning to South America, Group has successfully secured
and commenced public LED street lighting projects in Mexico during
the year under review with substantial endeavour.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRZWLE S Hh

The Group has also captured the opportunity in implementing a
long-term commercial lighting project in Germany for panel lighting.
Not only does the project provide a prolonged stable revenue in the
present, but also receiving recognition with the high standards in the
European market also has immense benefits for the Group’s brand
reputation within the industry. This is expected to back the Group’s
future growth and thus to boost related percentage of revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December

HZE12A31ALEE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
LED Lighting Revenue Breakdown  LEDFREAUR A B4R TiEx FAET %
Public Lighting NHRRER 34,839 63.9 33,271 58.0
Commercial Lighting % F AR AR 19,692 36.1 24,048 42.0
54,531 100.0 57,319 100.0

High-Tech Electronic Components and Products
Sourcing Business

The Group launched a non-core line of business in 2016, engaging
in sourcing high-tech electronic components and products as a
seasoned industry player, to serve as a supportive buffer in the
midst of a business restructuring. During the year under review,
revenue from the provision of sourcing services was approximately
HK$867,360,000, representing approximately 51.7% of the year’s
total revenue (2016: 38.0%), with the increase in demand for sourcing
service exceeding expectations.

The Group’s business restructuring is expected to be completely
actualised with time, meanwhile the temporary revenue growth in the
sourcing business helps to smoothen the transition period. Exerting
no influence on the future development of core business segments,
the Group intends to lower contribution from this part of revenue on
the basis that it remains a non-core and non-permanent business.
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For the year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BALEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fix FAT %
867,360 100 501,566 100
867,360 100 501,566 100

QUALITY CONTROL

The Group has established stringent quality control procedures to
ensure the quality of the LED products. From the very beginning of
production at the stage of product design, the Group’s quality control
procedures continue throughout the entire product manufacturing and
storage process. Quality control staff are to contribute to products’
design process so as to ensure quality excellence starting from the
fundamentals. There is a set of established procedures in selecting
and approving new suppliers and raw materials, and thorough testing
of product samples are carried out before mass production of the
LED products.

The Group owns a series of advanced production and testing
equipment for improving quality control. The Group has been
awarded various certifications, including ISO 9001:2008 and I1SO
14001:2004 for quality and environmental management systems,
which serve as important assurance of the product quality and
reliability.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and Development (“R&D”) is in the spirit of the Group since
polishing and creating designs are indispensably essential to the high-
tech world. To keep a long-term competitive edge in the industry,
the Group is constantly striving to drive the development of new
LED backlight and LED lighting products forward to cater to rapidly
changing markets around the world. During the year under review, the
Group introduced unconventional design to the sports field lighting.
Contrary to conventional sports field lighting where each light is
installed onto the panel at a fixed angle, our new product features an
adjustable angle for each light. This allows greater flexibility in covering
large outdoor sports fields in response to varying sunlight conditions.
Not to mention, the reduced number of lights to be installed to cover
a field of the same size will promote cost-effectiveness.

The Group’s R&D centre is located in our production plant in
Huizhou. The Group engages in various R&D activities, including
(i) concurrent development of new product designs with our
customers; (i) improvement of product quality, efficiency and functions
of existing products; (iii) in-project calibration and optimization
of the production processes and capability of the equipment;
(iv) introduction and promotion of the use of new production
technologies and new production materials; and (v) assessment of
the future prospect and development trend of the LED industry. The
Group has achieved a number of technological advancement and
breakthroughs throughout the years and, as of 31 December 2017,
the Group holds 56 patents registered in the PRC. Looking forward,
the Group will continue to enhance its R&D capabilities in order to
catch up with the strong demands in both LED backlight and LED
lighting products markets.
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AWARDS FOR CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

The Group stays ahead in the aspect of corporate responsibility while
in pursuit for commercial gains. During the year under review, the
Group’s subsidiary has received for the third year the Green Office
Awards Labelling Scheme (“GOALS”) Green Office Label by the
World Green Organization (“WGQO”), in recognition of the Group’s
continued efforts in aiding environmental protection.

WGO launched GOALS in 2013 with the objectives of raising
awareness of global environmental issues and encouraging
corporations to implement the best green practices in their offices
in 9 stipulated aspects of operations, including energy savings,
water savings, waste reduction, paper and printing reduction,
green procurement, IT use and disposal, transportation, education
and awareness, and finally green innovation. Companies have to
undergo a process of stringent green audit, during which the Group
has demonstrated its commitment in corporate social responsibility
by incorporating its green mission into daily practice and corporate
culture.

The Group strives to ensure an all-rounded performance in its
corporate social responsibility, the Group had been presented with
the Outstanding SME Social Responsibility Award (£ 1 & /s 1 %
& & T 18) again in 2017, by Hong Kong’s Mirror Post in the sixth
Annual Outstanding CSR Award Ceremony (£ /B Hb ¥t @5
EAR HRELID).

Mirror Post, a longstanding monthly magazine in Hong Kong,
organized the first Outstanding CSR Award in 2012 aiming to
celebrate Chinese enterprises excelling in their realization of CSR.
To be eligible for nomination, companies have to pass through a
strict selection process with the 7 criteria of obligations towards
shareholders, caring of employees, environmental protection,
commitment to customers, community and society relations,
leadership ability and other indices related to the enterprise’s own
specialty of the profession.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECTS

Both China’s economic status and the global geopolitical situation
are improving despite some overall uncertainties, business plans are
to be made prudently and cautiously. However, it is expected that as
the country’s economy increasingly turns to domestic consumption,
the expanding breadth and rising level of disposable income across
all tiers of cities will instill momentum into a new phase. Citing
The 2018 Blue book of China’s Economy ( 48 /% & & £ )) by the
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (/B # & £l Z B3 ), thriving
property markets, consumption upgrade, healthy employment and
income increment all attest to a strong and resilient structure which
is supportive of long-haul sustainable growth. Domestic new high-
tech manufacturers also continue to enjoy subsidies and supportive
policies in times of transition.

China’s automobile LED market, in which on-board displays has one
of the most robust growth potential, was valued at US$2.8 billion
of output in 2017 by LEDinside and forecast to grow 12.45% in
2018. Automobile LED consumer preference are predicted to call for
irregular shapes and curved frames on top of the common trends
of larger displays, wider viewing angle and enhanced brightness.
Technological advancement in autonomous vehicles will bring forth
more room for sustainable development in the automobile LED
market in the long run, especially that for passenger entertainment.
These trends in the long run will be indicative of a global standard for
new prototypes and innovation. The Group is always staying agile to
get ahold of opportunities.
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Progress made in the public and commercial lighting segments of the
Group has rewarded the worthwhile preparation. The panel lighting
products from Germany will help us set a firm footing in the relevant
market, broadening the Group’s portfolio and market grip, while the
panel lighting project in Germany will generate long-term revenue.
Since the start of the relationship with the Mexican government in
2012, we have earned their trust to take on their street lights projects.
It is believed that the Group’s reputation is going to be associated
with high-tier products when it perseveres with devotion to quality
control and innovation on the journey.

With the promotion of “The Belt and Road” initiatives, China’s
industrial economy is believed to move forward with the changing
market conditions in the near future. Along with the unpredictable
geopolitical issues, seeking global business opportunities will
always be the high priority for the Group in this complex business
environment.

Having over three decades of industry experience, the Group’s
promise of excellence will prevail as all sorts of opportunities arise.
Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited remains optimistic in furthering
its market exploration and strengthening its market position by
working towards better and innovative LED backlight and LED lighting
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRZWLE S Hh

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the year under review, the sources of revenue for the
Group were the sales of LED backlight, the sales of LED lighting
products and the business of high-tech electronic components and
products sourcing. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
sales of the Group’s LED backlight products were approximately
HK$756,075,000, a slight decrease by 0.9% from approximately
HK$762,716,000 in 2016, which was mainly attributable to the
temporary effect of cessation of sales of smartphone backlight
products. The sales of the Group’s LED lighting products were
approximately HK$54,531,000, a decrease by 4.9% from
approximately HK$57,319,000 in 2016. The fall was mainly
attributable to the decreased spending from commercial customers
on related LED lighting projects.

The non-core segment of high-tech electronic components and
products sourcing recorded sales at approximately HK$867,360,000
(2016: HK$501,566,000). The Group identified the opportunity
in sourcing high-tech electronic components and products at
the advantage of being greatly experienced in the industry. This
additional activity was strategized to be a means of profit optimization
considering the cessation of sales of smartphone LED backlight
products in the second half of 2016. Positioned and to be maintained
as a non-core business, its contribution will be heedfully curtailed to a
reasonable level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31HILEE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$°000 HK$’'000

Total Revenue g A T#T T %

LED Backlight LED2 )¢ 756,075 45.1 762,716 57.7

LED Lighting LEDRRRA 54,531 3.2 57,319 4.3
High-Tech Electronic Components  mEHYE T4 &

and Products Sourcing Business EE M BRES 575 867,360 51.7 501,566 38.0

1,677,966 100.0 1,321,601 100.0

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin EFREFIE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, gross profit from the sales
of LED backlight and LED lighting products was HK$211,494,000,
representing increase of 34.9% from approximately HK$156,770,000
in 2016, mainly due to the increase in revenue, from the automobile
LED display segment with a higher gross profit margin. Gross profit
margin for these two segments increased by 7.0 percentage points
from 19.1% in 2016 to 26.1% in the year under review. Gross profit
and gross profit margin from high-tech electronic components
and products sourcing were HK$7,343,000 and 0.8% (2016:
HK$4,495,000 and 0.9%) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s overall gross
profit was approximately HK$218,837,000, increased by 35.7% from
approximately HK$161,265,000 in 2016. Gross profit margin was
13.0%, increased by 0.8 percentage points from 12.2% in 2016 due
to shifted business focus to high-margin products.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Labour costs, sales commissions and transportation costs were the
Group’s major selling and distribution expenses. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
was approximately HK$23,943,000, an increase of 1.3% compared
to approximately HK$23,625,000 of the year 2016, which was in line
with the increased revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses refer to the general expenses incurred in
offices and factories. The Group focuses on effective management,
by means of resources consolidation in the Shenzhen and Huizhou
factories. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
administrative expenses was approximately HK$87,638,000, which
increased by 16.5% compared to approximately HK$75,227,000, of
the year 2016. The increase was mainly attributable to the expand of
business scale.

Other Income and Other Gains

During the year under review, other income and gains was
approximately HK$16,310,000, a decrease of 31.8% in comparison
with approximately HK$23,901,000 of the year 2016 mainly due to
the government grants recognised as income during the year have
been decreased.

Taxation

Taxation comprised current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Two of the Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited and Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics
Company Limited, are qualified as a “High-Tech Enterprise” in the
PRC and granted certain tax benefit, including a preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% instead of the statutory rate of 25%. During
the year under review, the Group’s tax expenses amounted to
approximately HK$6,002,000 (2016: HK$383,000), which was in line
with the increased profit.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s inventory was approximately
HK$207,631,000, increased by 8.2% as compared to approximately
HK$191,838,000 at 31 December 2016. The increase in inventory
was attributable to the shift of business focus to high-margin
products.
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Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$392,747,000, which decreased
by 10.2% as compared to approximately HK$437,263,000 at
31 December 2016.

Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade payables amounted to
approximately HK$194,387,000, increased by 26.1% as compared
to the approximate HK$154,167,000 of 31 December 2016, which
was attributable to increase in purchase of materials.

Placing of New Shares and Offer to Acquire the
Company’s Shares

On 6 May 2016, the Company completed a placing of new shares
(the “Placing”), allotted and issued 16,825,000 new shares of
the Company to not less than six individuals who are independent
third parties at the price of HK$2.00 per share. Net proceeds from
the Placing amounted to approximately HK$31,134,000, which
are intended to be used for financing any potential investment
opportunities such as mergers and acquisition that may arise from
time to time. As at 31 December 2017, the net proceeds from the
Placing have not yet been utilized and have been deposited with
licensed banks in Hong Kong.

On 13 December 2016, Rexell Technology Company Limited (all the
issued shares of which are legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Yiu
Chi To), showing confidence in the Company’s prospects, offered
to acquire all the issued shares of the Company (other than those
already owned by Rexell Technology Company Limited) at the offer
price of HK$2.00 per share, with the total consideration of the offer
being HK$207,078,000. On 3 January 2017, 5 valid acceptances
in respect of a total of 20,587,000 shares had been received,
representing approximately 9.49% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company as at 3 January 2017.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

EF EREEARRER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yiu Chi To, age 55, is the founder of our Group, the executive
Director and Chairman of our Company. He was appointed as
an executive Director of our company on 16 August 2013. He is
responsible for formulating corporate strategies and overseeing the
Group’s business development and operation as well as monitoring
the Group’s administration. He also plays a role in developing
new technology and innovations with our Group’s research and
development team and maintaining good relationships with our major
customers. Mr. Yiu has more than 30 years of working experience
in the LED industry. Mr. Yiu had successfully registered patents in
the PRC for the new technologies that he had developed, including
“Double sided light emitting backlight” in 2003, “Bottom-side dual-
efficient LED white light” in 2004, and “LED with heat dissipation” in
2005. From 2009 to present, Mr. Yiu also served as a deputy director
for the Shenzhen Light Emitting Diode Industry Association.

Mr. Yiu graduated from Fujian Jinjiang Neikeng High School in 1978.
Prior to the establishment of the Group, from 1979 to 1981 he
worked in an electronic watch manufacturing company initially as an
assembly line worker, and was later promoted to a manager where
he was involved in sales and marketing of the electronic watches and
in 1982 he started a business in the electronic watch industry and
ceased the business in 1984 before establishing the Group. In 1984,
Mr. Yiu founded Wai Chi Electronics Co. Mr. Yiu is the father of Ms.
Yiu Kwan Yu and Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai and father-in-law of Mr. Chen
Chung Po.

Mr. Chen Chung Po, age 40, was appointed as executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of our Company on 16 August 2013.
He is responsible for the day-to-day management of our Group
including administration, procurement, production as well as financial
management. Mr. Chen received his Bachelor of Arts in Business
Studies degree from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2000. He has more than 10 years of working experience in banking
and finance fields. After graduation, he joined Bank of China (Hong
Kong) as a credit analyst and has been gradually promoted to Branch
Manager from 2000 to 2006. From 2006 to 2010, he worked with
Sun Hung Kai Group of companies serving as the Vice President of
Sales Division in Wealth Management when he resigned in 2011.
From 2011 to 2012, he was a person licensed to carry on Type 2
regulated activity. Prior to joining our Group, he was the sales director
in GF Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage Limited from 2011 to 2013.
Mr. Chen is the husband of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, son-in-law of Mr. Yiu
Chi To and brother-in-law of Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, age 33, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 16 August 2013. She is also the Sales and
Marketing Manager of Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited since
2009. Ms. Yiu joined us in 2008 and served as Sales and Marketing
Executive initially. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of
our LED lighting division and she is also in charge of the research and
development department of our LED lighting division. Ms. Yiu received
her Bachelor’'s degree of Applied Science in Electrical Engineering
from The University of British Columbia in May 2008 and her Master
of Lighting degree from the Queensland University of Technology
in May 2012. Ms. Yiu was admitted as Engineer by the Corporation
of Seven Wardens Inc. in 2008. She holds the Directorship of Hong
Kong Critical Component Manufacturing Association currently and the
Directorship of Hong Kong Opto Mechatronics Industry Association
from 2012 to present. Ms. Yiu is the elder daughter of Mr. Yiu Chi To,
wife of Mr. Chen Chung Po and elder sister of Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai.

Mr. Chen Wei Wu, age 54, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 11 March 2014. He is the Financial Controller
of Shenzhen Wai Chi since 2010. He is responsible for the financial
management and day-to-day financial operation in the PRC region.
He has 30 years of experience in commercial and finance fields.
From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Chen served as Accounting Officer in Jinan
Chemicals Factory at Hengyang City of Hunan. From 1992 to 1997,
he served as Financial Controller in Shenzhen Zhonggiao Group at
Shenzhen. From 1997 to 2001, he served as Vice General Manager
and Chief Financial Controller in Shenzhen Shennan Merchants
Group. From 2001 to 2006, he served as the Assistant to the
General Manager and head of the Capital Department in Shenzhen
Saigedasheng Joint-stock Company Limited. From 2006 to 2008,
he served as the General Manager of the Audit Planning Department
in GD Hengfeng Investment Group Co., Ltd. From 2008 to 2010,
he served as the General Manager of Group Finance Division in
Shenzhen Shangtianran Investment Company Limited. Mr. Chen
studied and graduated from the correspondence course in industrial
accountancy and received the professional certificate in industrial
accountancy from the Hunan College of Finance and Economics in
July 1987. In October 1994, Mr. Chen was conferred by the Ministry
of Finance in the PRC the qualification of an accountant specializing
in corporate accounting. In April 2011, Mr. Chen was admitted as
Senior International Finance Manager by the International Financial
Management Association. In June 2012, Mr. Chen obtained his
Master of Business Administration degree from the Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. In November 2014, Mr. Chen
obtained his Doctor of Business Administration degree from the
Victoria University of Switzerland.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

Ms. Yong Jian Hui, age 41, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 11 March 2014. She joined our Company
since 2003. She is currently the Deputy General Manager and the
Head of Sales Department of Shenzhen Wai Chi Opto Technology
Company Limited. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of
our LED backlight products. She has more than 10 years of working
experience in sales and marketing of backlight products. Prior to
her joining our Company, Ms. Yong served as the head of Sales
Department at Wah Mei Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited
from 2000 to 2002. Ms. Yong received the certificate on achieving the
third grade in University English from the Hunan Radio & TV University
in March 1998 and her Master of Business Administration degree
from the Southwest Jiaotong University in June 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, age 54, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director (“INED”) of our Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Au Yeung obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now The Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in 1987. He is a member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Au
Yeung had worked for a number of years for Price Waterhouse and
had acted as a financial manager of a listed company and a major
private company respectively in Hong Kong. He has been a certified
public accountant since 1994 and has over fifteen years’ experience
in auditing, finance and administration. He is now the director of Lau
& Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited.

Mr. Au Yeung was appointed in May 2006 and is currently acting as
an independent non-executive director of Amvig Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2300, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange formerly known as Vision Grande Group Holdings Limited),
Mr. Au Yeung was also appointed on 12 August 2016 and is currently
acting as an independent non-executive director of Man Shing Global
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8309, a company listed on
the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange).
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang, age 55, was appointed as INED of our
Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Chen is currently a Partner at Messrs. Fairbairn, Catley, Low &
Kong. He has been admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court since
2005. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton in February 2002 and his Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in June 2003. Mr. Chen
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering in November
1986 and also a Master of Business Administration degree in
December 1997 from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chen was a Member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
(now known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
in 1990.

Prior to establishing his career in the legal field, Mr. Chen worked
in an international accounting firm from 1986 to 1991 as a Staff
Accountant and was eventually promoted to the position of Audit
Supervisor. In 1992 to 1993, Mr. Chen became an Internal Auditor at
the Hong Kong branch of a bank. In 1993 to 2000, Mr. Chen worked
at The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in the capacity as
a Manager and was eventually promoted to the position of Senior
Manager. In 2001 to 2002, Mr. Chen worked at the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong as a Manager where he was
responsible for day-to-day supervision of financial intermediaries.
Mr. Chen was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Fujian Start Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600734), on 20 May 2014 and PPS
International (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 8201), during the
period from 19 November 2014 to 30 December 2015.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

Mr. Ho Chi Wai, age 43, was appointed as INED of our Company on
11 March 2014.

Mr. Ho is currently a partner of SRF Partners & Co., CPAs. He
obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration from
Lingnan University in November 1997 and a Master’s degree in
Finance from Jinan University in December 2012. He is currently a
practicing certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a certified tax adviser at the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong and an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, a member of the Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Ho has over 20 years of experience in audit assurance and
business consulting. Prior to his own practice in 2012, Mr. Ho worked
as an Audit Senior in a local accounting firm from 1997 to 2000. From
2000 to 2010, Mr. Ho was the audit manager in a sizable accounting
firm and from 2010 to 2011 he became the Principal of the group the
said accountancy firm belonged in.

Mr. Ho acted as an independent non-executive Director of Ming Kei
Holdings Limited (Stock Code 8239, a company listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange) from June 2012 to October 2013.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai, age 31, joined our Company since 2011 and
is currently the General Manager of Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics
Company Limited Lighting Department. She is also currently the
Senior Marketing Executive of Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited
where she is responsible for product development and marketing.
Prior to joining our Company, Ms. Yiu worked as a sales lead in
a retail group from 2007 to 2009. Ms. Yiu obtained a Bachelor of
Arts degree with major in Economics from Simon Fraser University,
British Columbia, Canada in May 2011 and obtain a Master Degree
in Business in 2016. Ms. Yiu is the younger daughter of Mr. Yiu Chi
To, younger sister of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and sister-inlaw of Mr. Chen
Chung Po.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Mr. Luo Zeng Chang, age 36, joined our Company since 2003 and
is currently the General Manager of our Project Design Department
of Shenzhen Wai Chi. Mr. Luo is responsible for supervising the
designs of our products. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Luo was
a research development engineer in a small to medium size LED
backlight module manufacturing company from 2002 to 2003. Mr.
Luo was then employed as a senior technician at Shenzhen Wai Chi
in 2003 and was the leader of our Design Project Department from
2004 to 2007. He was then appointed as the Vice General Manager
of our Design Project Department at Shenzhen Wai Chi in 2008. Mr.
Luo obtained a graduation certificate specializing in Mechatronics
from Jiaying University in July 2001.

Mr. Pei Yanfeng, age 48, joined our Company since 2008 and is
currently the Technical General Manager of Wai Chi Jingmi Hardware
(Huizhou) Company Limited. Prior to joining our Company, Mr.
Pei was a Mould Assistant Engineer at a company specialised in
developing and manufacturing hardware in Heinan from 1992 to
1995. He was then a Mould Engineer at a factory in Dong Guan from
1995 to 1997. From 1997 to 1998, he was a Mould Engineer at
Shenzhen Konka factory. He was then the Mould Design Personnel
in Charge of a company from 1998 to 2001. From 2001 to 2004,
he was the Head of the Department of Plastic Moulds at a factory in
Shenzhen. He was then the Manager of a mould factory in Shenzhen
from 2005 to 2006. Between 2007 and 2008, he was the Mould
Manager of a telecommunications company in Shenzhen. Mr. Pei
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Materials Engineering specialised in
Moulding from Xian Technological University in July 1992.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, age 36, was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of our Company on 11 March 2014 and appointed as
the Company Secretary of our Company on 12 November 2015.

Mr. Cheung is responsible for our financial management other
than the PRC. Mr. Cheung has over 9 years of experience in audit
assurance. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheung worked as audit
trainee in Eric Ng & Co. from June 2003 to July 2004 and as audit
manager in Jonten Hopkins CPA Limited from July 2004 to March
2014. Mr. Cheung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with an honors degree in Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy
in November 2003. He is currently a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified tax
adviser at the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEREE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its principal place of business at
6th Floor, Liven House, Nos. 61-63 King Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 36 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 December 2017.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
(the “Reporting Period”) are set out in the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 74 to 166 of this annual report. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a dividend and resolve not to
declare any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) to be held on 25 May
2018 (Friday), the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 21 May 2018 (Monday) to 25 May 2018 (Friday), both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2018 (Friday). The record date for the
entitlement to attend the AGM will be on 18 May 2018 (Friday).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 78 to 79 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders is approximately HK$331,977,000
(2016: approximately HK$331,977,000), representing the balance of
share premium account which can be authorised for this purpose in
accordance with the Company Law of Cayman Islands.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are
set out in Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group, based on
total borrowings (including bank borrowing, corporate bonds and
obligations under finance leases) to the equity (including all capital
and reserves) of the Company, was 50% (2016: 48%).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEEREE

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 2,379 employees. The
Group recognized the importance of maintaining good relationship
with its employees and retaining competent staff to ensure operational
efficiency and effectiveness. In the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group had not encountered any significant problems with its
employees, and there had not been any dispute between the Group
and its employees that might have caused any disruption to the
Group’s business or operation. The Group has had no difficulty
in recruiting and retaining experienced staff. The remuneration of
each employee of the Group is determined on the basis of his or
her performance and responsibility. The Group provides training to
employees.

The total staff cost incurred by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$165,234,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the percentage of public float
as prescribed in the Listing Rules for the Reporting Period and at any
time before and up to the date of this annual report.

32

E&

R2017F 128318 » REBEHXLBF2,379% 8
T - AEBEFRERIERTLERER  HEAS
VARE(R S B TR KB » MBI ZE 2017412 831
AEEHRA  AEEHEES cHREER
AEREE  mMAEEEEES ZEMEERA
AIS|BAEBMEBREEPEHOULYD - &
EERERGBEEHRNET HE - WEER
N - SAUEEMNHIRENERBEBEM
EETEH - AEE A E TIRESE -

REZE2017F12A3MBEER  KEFBZET
KA 48 4 58 #) /5165,234,000/8 7T °

BhBREE

RAFEBERSIEEMRIAEBR=EHS
ZEREEY EEIAREEBEENG -

DRERE
BEXFRAME - REFARTARMEZ
BN RAARRERRAOE - ARFERR
HEE - REEAFRAEAEMRRIRS
(ETRBDFTEE 2 ARHBRE -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to and including the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
Mr. Chen Wei Wu
Ms. Yong Jian Hui
Mr. Peng Jian resigned on 16 January 2017

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang
Mr. Ho Chi Wai

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s articles
of association, each of Mr. Yiu Chi To, Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms.
Yiu Kwan Yu, all of whom were appointed as executive directors on
16 August 2013 will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election thereat.

Mr. Peng Jian has resigned as executive director of the Company with
effect from 16 January 2017 to pursue his own career development.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 24 to 29 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yiu Chi To, Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for three
years from 16 August 2016, and may be terminated by either party
by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Chen Wei Wu and Ms. Yong Jian Hui has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for three years from 11 March
2017, and may be terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Mr. Chen Kwok Wang and Mr. Ho
Chi Wai has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of two years commencing from 11 March 2018 and may
be terminated by either party by giving not less than two months’
written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract of
service with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (except for statutory compensation).

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference
to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence and the
prevailing market conditions. Apart from Mr. Peng Jian, who agreed
not to receive any emoluments agreed under the service agreement,
none of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration of the Group as at the date of
this annual report are set out in Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2017 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children (under 18 years of age), or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement whose objectives are to enable a Director of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to and
including the date of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sub-section headed “Connected
Transaction” below and “Related Party Transactions and Balances”
in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party to and in which a Director or a
controlling shareholder had a material interest in, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2017
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive personnel of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

EERITRITHRABRBEQARIR
HBBHEE RS - 1R RE
FZHEBSRAR

R2017F12A31H - ARARESLEEITHA
BERARa MEEBEE (TR RBFLHE
&G ([ BHERBEMERG ) EXVED B9kt - 48
Bl REERTR BERRRAREBEESR
BIEIEPIE 32 AMFE B R MR AR
1B LR AN SR 10FTE_ E T AZE B HRITHE
FRGHFETR([BEFE ) BTMERR
AN R TR R MOAR T ¢

Approximate

Number and percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest class of securities shareholding
EENA 513 ERME BB A RER IRESIA TS
(Note 2)
(KMtsxr2)
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Note 1) Beneficial owner 128,120,000 (L) 59.09%
whEE S A (MEE1) BHEAA
Notes: BsE

1. Mr. Yiu Chi To holds 100% of the issued share capital of Rexell Technology
Company Limited, which is the controlling shareholder holding approximately
59.09% of the issued share capital of the Company.

2. The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors and chief executive personnel of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest
or short positions which they had taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PARTIES IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as the directors and chief executive
officer of the Company were aware, the following persons and
corporations (excluding the directors and chief executive officer of
the Company) had interests or short positions in any of the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company and Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who, directly or indirectly, is
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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EFBRIRRREMALTRADQTRG
RHHBARG P S RIX R

MR2017512H318 » AR RES RITHERL
FTEn - ATFATRZEB(ERRBESERITHAR
FHUAIN) AR B s AR I 15 o B AR IR
BHRAEGPIEXVERE 2 R 3D ERME S TE
BAHEARRNA REZFHERIORE - B
Sk A Al N EE AR S B (W B B A EHY
fRERARE HIREREMAERIRAMEE10%5k A
BRI

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares held capital
BBITREAZ
EERER 57 #EHE FrsiRin 8B BAERT
Rexell Technology Company Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 128,120,000 59.09%
HERHEER AR () BE=MAA
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 128,120,000 59.09%
whEE A (FEE2) REEEE N
Ms. Luk Fong (Note 3) Interest of spouse 128,120,000 59.09%
B 75 22+ (B15E3) Ao iB s
Notes: FfsE :

1. Rexell Technology Company Limited directly holds 128,120,000 shares
representing approximately 59.09% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

2. Mr. Yiu Chi To is the legal and beneficial owner of all the issued shares of
Rexell Technology Company Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company held by Rexell Technology Company Limited
under the SFO.

3. Ms. Luk Fong, as the spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Rexell Technology Company Limited by virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company, a director
of the Company may be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which the director shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of his or her duty as a director of the Company,
to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted indemnity provision
has been in force since the adoption of the articles of association of
the Company on 27 October 2014 and is currently in force at the time
of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its directors
and officers.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of its/his compliance with the terms and undertakings of the deed
of non-competition provided to the Company under the Deed of
Non-competition (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated
4 November 2014). The INEDs of the Company have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the terms and
undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition have been complied
with by the controlling shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 168 of this
annual report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has had two
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which is
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of such a continuing connected
transaction (as defined under the Listing Rules) are set out below in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules:

Tenancy Agreement with Maxtone Electronics
Limited (“Maxtone”)

Maxtone leased to our Group a property located at Unit A, 6th Floor,
Liven House, Nos. 61-63 King Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the
“Property”). The term for the existing tenancy agreements in respect
of the Property commenced from 1 April 2017, and will expire on 31
March 2019 at a monthly rent of HK$90,000 exclusive of rates, air-
conditioning, management charges and other outgoings. As at 31
December 2017, Maxtone was held as to 60% by Mr. Yiu Kwan Lok,
the son of Mr. Yiu Chi To, as to 20% by Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, a director
of the Company and as to 20% by Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai, a member of
our senior management and therefore it is a connected party of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, total rental paid or
payable by the Group under the Tenancy Agreement amounted
to HK$1,065,000 which did not exceed the annual caps for this
transaction.

Opinion from the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and Auditor on the Continuing Connected
Transaction

The Directors (including all INEDs) have reviewed the continuing
connected transaction and confirmed that this transaction was
entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it and on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited (“SHINEWING”), the auditor of the Company, was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Company has received an
unqualified letter from SHINEWING containing their finding and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction
disclosed above.

The Company’s auditors have reported to the Directors that during
the year ended 31 December 2017, the above-mentioned continuing
connected transaction had been approved by the Board, had been
entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transaction and the annual cap amount set out in the relevant
agreement for the transaction had not been exceeded.

Personal Guarantee given by Controlling
Shareholder

Certain banking facilities of the Group were guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi
To, the controlling shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2017, the amount of such banking facilities was HK$71,778,000.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the largest supplier
accounted for 14% of the Group’s purchases and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 50% of the Group’s total purchases. The
largest customer accounted for 27% of the Group’s revenue and
the five largest customers accounted for 78% of the Group’s total
revenue.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$35,000 (2016: approximately HK$36,000).

CORPORATE BOND

Details of movement in corporate bonds issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the INEDs to be independent.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased or redeemed any of the listed
shares of the Company. The Controlling shareholder of the Company,
Rexell Technology Company Limited, has purchased 20,386,000
listed shares during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company and its management are committed to maintain
good corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence to all shareholders.
The Company believes that good corporate governance is essential
for continual growth and enhancement of shareholder’s value. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has applied
and complied with the code provisions stipulated in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company periodically
reviews its corporate governance practices with reference to the
latest development in corporate governance. The Group’s principal
corporate governance practices and compliance with code provisions
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 43 to 59 of
this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

During the reporting period, the Group is committed to continuously
promote the long-term, stable and sustainable development of
employees, environmental protection and social responsibilities.

The Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 60 to 66
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed with management the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017, the accounting principles and practices adopted and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters.

AUDITOR

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by
SHINEWING. A resolution to re-appoint SHINEWING as our auditor
will be submitted for shareholders’ approval at our forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. YIU Chi To
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed in maintaining high standards of
corporate governance (“CG”). The Board believes that commitment
in CG practices will definitely benefit Company’s shareholders in
long term. For the year ended 31 December 2017 (“FY2017"),
the Company has applied the principles and complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules in force at
that time.

The Board considers that good CG is central to safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of
the Group. The Board will continuously review and improve the CG
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

With a view to further improving the Company’s CG practices, the
following actions were taken in 2017:

e Appointment of INEDs with appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management experience with
regulatory entities to further broaden the collective knowledge,
perspective and skill of the Board.

e All members of the Audit Committee are INEDs and all of them
have appropriate professional accounting qualifications and
financial management experience.

e |ntroduction of a program of continuous professional
development for Directors by providing internal training to the
Board.

e To adopt Board diversity policy to recognize and embrace the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.
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ERELWE

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, all the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2017.

THE BOARD

The Board focuses on the overall strategic development and is
also responsible for monitoring the financial performance, risk
management and the internal controls of the Group. With a
wide range of expertise and a balance of skills, the INEDs bring
independent judgment on issues of strategic direction, development,
performance and risk management through their contribution at
Board meetings and committee work.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

All of the Directors have service agreements or letters of appointment
and the details of their terms are set out in the Report of the Directors
on pages 30 to 42 of this annual report. All Directors are subject to
re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting. Retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election and re-election of retiring Directors
at annual general meetings is dealt with by separate individual
resolutions. Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates are
proposed and put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee
as more fully explained below under the section on Nomination
Committee.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board has five executive Directors
and three INEDs, as shown on page 3 of this annual report.
Biographies of the Company’s Directors are shown on pages 24 to
29 of this annual report.

INEDs ensure the Board accounts for the interest of all shareholders
and subject matters are considered objectively. The Board has
received from each INED an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all of
the INEDs to be independent. INEDs have accounted for 37.5% of
the full Board.

44

ERETEFXZNETES

ARRERABRETARARRESTETES
RZMRTIES - EFEE2RBNBLRHHIEN
% HRREE2017TFHRFERNCETERT
B MEERESETESFRINEERER
FETRI BT RSTA]

EET
EETRATARENERBRBER LA
AEEWHRE - RREELAEE 2 ARE
17 o B EZNERMBANFHINREE - B
FATEF((BIFRE DR EES
CERMTEENTIEREH  BR X8
KR\ E IR E B FIE

EERAIRER

PIAEESORFMBHONEES - HEER
BN A FRFEOEFWREEETGHEEN ° I
BREARBRRBFAG LRIBRER - RE
EXERERER RBRRBFREL ZER
FEFZDRERRAREBET - BT IR
HLRBEe-—HEREMNIE - HEFRELZR
B REASHIEERZECRNESRERLE

2o

EEgHE

RAREEE  ESSARERTEER=S
BN FMENAFRESEH - AAFES
7 BRIIEH NN FRE24E298 ©

B FHERREZTERMERRNNAER
B UREAZBRELTEHEE EFECR
B EMMRAEIAGMEZBILIFNEZFE
R UWHERHBYM -EFERRMEBEYL
FMEHRBYM - BUFREEZEZTEN
37.5% °

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R ER Q7



THE BOARD (continued)

Board Composition (continued)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among members of the Board except
that Mr. Yiu Chi To is the father of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and father-in-law
of Mr. Chen Chung Po. Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
are a married couple.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and the Chief Executive
Officer are Mr. Yiu Chi To and Mr. Chen Chung Po, respectively.

Induction, Information and ongoing Development

All Directors were kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may have affected the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. In addition, the Group has implemented a
continuing development programme to update the Directors (in
particular INEDs) on the macro economics and business environment
relevant to the Group’s major operations.

In addition to the above, each newly-appointed Director received
a tailored induction programme, which covers briefing on the
Company’s overview by the Chief Executive Officer, meeting with
management and meeting with the Company’s external legal adviser
on directors’ legal role and responsibilities. To further maximize the
contribution from INEDs, separate meeting between the Chairman
and INEDs was held in November 2017 to address business and
related issues. Written procedures are also in place for Directors to
seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’
duties at the Company’s expense. No request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice during the FY2017.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Information and ongoing Development
(continued)

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in accordance with code provision A.6.5 contained in the
CG Code. Each of the Directors received a series of training locally or
overseas, relevant trainings and briefings included, among others:

e  development of national and global economy;

e national policy outlook;

e  corporate governance;

° regulatory updates; and

e |LED backlight and lighting industry development trend, etc.

All of them have also provided to the Company their records of
training attended or fulfilment of ongoing development for the year,
the information of which has been entered in the register of directors’
training records maintained and updated by the Company from
time to time. The following summarises the compliance status of all

Directors of the Company in respect of code provision A.6.5 during
the year:

EEEH(A)
BE - EANBERR(E)

REBEEETRFALLE - FR - FIAESHE
DMFEEEER - ABRME A0 R
TEcEE - BREFEB T — R ARM I
Bl AAEEIIMERERE

o HERVMEMLEBENEE

o BIHEERE: K
o LEDEXNMRATENRRBY  FF -

FEEREHARARKTAFELMELE
RIFFIRFT A I ERRERWRE - EPH(E
BERFHFEESEIRERTE  LHAR
BINEFE R o THAK THTRIFABLKRFR
AARAZREFENETIEN

In compliance
with Code A.6.5

Name of Directors EENR E=r=FRIZEA.6.5(%
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman) KEBRE(FE) v
Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer) BREERL LA (T4 EL) 4
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu BRI L v
Mr. Chen Wei Wu PREER S v/
Ms. Yong Jian Hui FEEIE AL v
Independent non-executive Directors BAEBTES

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BRf REE S A4 v
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang FRED S5 v
Mr. Ho Chi Wai AR & v
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THE BOARD (continued)

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to management. It also gives clear directions
as to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to
the matters that management must report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board determines on
regular basis which functions are reserved to the Board and which
are delegated to management.

The Board exercises a number of duties and powers which include:

e  formulating of the Group’s long-term strategy;

e approving major acquisitions, disposals and capital investment;
° reviewing operational and financial performance;

e approving financial results and public announcements;

° reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control;

e authorizing material borrowings;
e  setting dividend policy;

e approving appointment to the Board and senior management;
and

e  setting the Group’s remuneration policy.
To assist in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities, the Board
established four committees, namely the audit committee, the

remuneration committee, the nomination committee, and the risk
management committee.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Processes

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory
matters. There is an established procedure for Directors to obtain
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has also arranged
appropriate director and officer liability insurance cover in respect of
any potential legal actions that might be taken against its Directors.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategies and monitor the operations as well as the financial
performance of the Group. The Chairman mainly focuses on Group
strategies and is responsible for chairing and managing the efficient
operation of the Board and ensuring that all key issues are considered
by the Board in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days has been
given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings and the Directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda whenever they
consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda and accompanying
Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings are despatched
in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the meeting.
Directors have to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at board
meetings and abstain from voting as appropriate. Draft minutes of
all board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time prior to confirmation.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Processes (continued)

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
tEERRE

EEEH(A)
EETRF(A)

EFEENEFZEENGALEBARRINER

kept by the Company Secretary. All Directors have free access to GF-2REesaREEsHESgN G ER
board papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate R T RRHERETROHER  FESST
information in a timely manner, enabling the Board to make informed MIRESEMNSHEELABRE - R20174E
decision on matters placed before it. In FY2017, four Board meetings N EBESERTTHURESTZAT  €5RLF
were held and the attendance details are shown as follows: BN
Board Meetings
attended in FY2017
—E—LEHBEE
Name of Directors EEHE HEEEEERRH
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman) KEB K E(FE) 4/4
Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer) PREE L S 4 (7TICABEL) 4/4
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu BB L 4/4
Mr. Chen Wei Wu BRAZE ST 4/4
Ms. Yong Jian Hui AL 4/4
Mr. Peng Jian TREE *
Independent non-executive Directors BAEMITES
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BRPS R ZE S A 4/4
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang R 7R ST 4/4
Mr. Ho Chi Wai B & 4/4
* Mr. Peng Jian has resigned as director from the Company on 16 January * TELEN2017F1 B16BEBTAR TZ%$E§&

2017, thus he has not attended any board meeting held in the year.

BOARD’S COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and risk management
committee. Each of them has specific terms of reference to consider
matters relating to specific areas and to advise the Board on such
matters. INEDs play a significant role in these committees to ensure
that independent and objective views are taken. The list of the
Chairman and members of each Board committee is set out on page
3 of this annual report.
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tEERRE

BOARD’S COMMITTEES (continued)
(a) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls.

The Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and
external auditors the Group’s significant internal controls and
financial matters (as set out in the Audit Committee’s terms of
reference), including:

° the Group’s interim and annual financial statements with
recommendation to the Board for approval;

e the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements;

e the Group’s financial reporting, internal control and risk
management;

e arranging the internal control audit department working
plan, discussing the review result of internal control system
and reporting to the Board;

e  discussing with the external auditors the nature, scope of
the audit and significant accounting and audit issues;

o connected transactions; and
®  managing and overseeing the external auditors.

The Audit Committee has the power to conduct investigations
into any matter within the scope of responsibility of the Audit
Committee and is authorized to obtain independent professional
advice if it deems necessary in discharging its responsibilities.

The Audit Committee has been satisfied with the review of
the audit scope, process and effectiveness, independence of
SHINEWING and thus recommended the Board for the approval
of the 2017 financial statements.

In FY2017, three meetings were held by Audit Committee with
100% attendance by all Audit Committee’s members.
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BOARD’S COMMITTEES (continued)

(b) Remuneration Committee

(c)

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the
Group’s overall policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, and ensures that no
Director or any of his associate is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also reviews
and approves (i) compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that such compensation is consistent
with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
and (ii) compensation arrangement(s) relating to dismissal
or removal of Director(s) for misconduct to ensure that such
compensation arrangement is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the
determination of the remuneration packages of individual
executive Director and senior management to the Remuneration
Committee.

In determining the remuneration for Directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors and the desirability of performance-based
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meets to determine the policy
for the remuneration of Directors and assess the performance
of executive Directors and approving the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts. In FY2017, two meetings were
held by Remuneration Committee with 100% attendance by all
Remuneration Committee members.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the candidates’ qualification and competence, and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors, so
as to ensure that all nominations are fair and reasonable.
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ERELWE

BOARD’S COMMITTEES (continued)

(c)

(d)

92

Nomination Committee (continued)

The functional roles of the Nomination Committee are:

e 1o establish a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment or reappointment of Directors;

e to make recommendations to the Board for new
appointments or reappointments of executive and non-
executive directors;

e to evaluate the performance of Directors and determine if
they should be reappointed; and

e to be responsible for significant issues concerning the
nomination of Directors during the year.

The Nomination Committee meets to discuss the procedures
and criteria which should be adopted by them in nominating
candidates for directorship and agreed that such criteria
should include the candidates’ professional background,
their experiences and their past track record with other listed
companies (if any). In FY2017, two meetings were held by
Nomination Committee with 100% attendance by all Nomination
Committee members

Risk Management Committee

The members of the Risk Management Committee comprise
three members which include the Chief Executive Officer
(“*CEO”), Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) and one INED of the
Company. The Board has appointed Mr. Chen Chung Po (CEO),
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (CFO) and Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (INED)
as members of the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Chen
Chung Po has also been appointed as the Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the risk management committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for
risk assessment and risk management and reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management function.

In FY2017, two meetings with attendance by all Risk
Management Committee’s members were held.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, SHINEWING, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
HK$975,000 and HK$210,000 respectively. The details and fee for
non-audit services are set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

% 2IEME &

RER » KRBREE2017F12 831 B IE5F
BT IR M IE AT RS S AT INEEAZ Z A=
KA AE NS 5 Bl A975,00078 7T 210,000/
JC o MIEFT RGN ME KT &AM BD
—F :

HK$
i
2017 interim review 20177 Hit 54 210,000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. Management
is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems, while the Board oversees management in performing its
duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

° Identification: Identify occurrence and changes in the nature and
extent of risks, business objectives and risks that could affect
the achievement of objectives.

e  FEvaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; assess the Group’s ability

to manage risks.

e  Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitoring of risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2017, no significant risk
was identified.
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tEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components of
the framework are shown as follows:

94

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal control
across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed.

Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to
the achievement of objectives are carried out.

Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is present and
functioning.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

e The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

e  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

e  The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2017, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is executed
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operational effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are reported to
the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted semi-annually. Several areas
have been considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but
not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant
risks since the last review, and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment (i) the scope
and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems,
however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications
and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and comply with the requirement of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (‘Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance”) and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. The auditors are responsible for forming an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial statements
prepared by the Directors and reporting the opinion solely to the
Company’s shareholders. The Independent Auditor’s Report is set
out on pages 67 to 74 of this annual report.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATION

The Company endeavors to continue maintaining a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and the investment
community at large. Briefings and meetings with institutional investors
and analysts are conducted regularly. The Company is committed to
maintaining an open and effective investor communication policy and
to update investors on relevant information on its business on a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications
with the investors and analysts, all corporate communications are
arranged and handled by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Financial information and all shareholder corporate communications
of the Company are made available on the Company’s website at
http://www.waichiholdings.com and updated regularly on a timely
basis.

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ right and
all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. The Company will
announce and publish its interim and annual results in a timely
manner, which is well before the time limits set out in the Listing
Rules. Separate resolutions will be proposed at the general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the re-election of
individual Directors, if any.

The annual general meeting will provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and the Company’s shareholders.
The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important
event in which the Chairman and all Directors will make an effort to
attend. External auditors shall also be invited to attend the Company’s
annual general meeting and are also available to assist the Directors
in addressing queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of
the audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’ report. All
shareholders are given prior notice on a timely basis together with
a detailed agenda. The Board, according to the Listing Rules, will
conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company will be declared at the meeting, and announced timely on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

2017 Annual Report | £

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

BiREE RICRAVEAR
ARrREEBREEEFERER  —ERE8R
FeERE - ARAEHREBREE RO
BRITHRENRGH - ARABNILRARE
ERE  #RARREMNREEBBRE
W R EIRE E RPN EBER -

AR EE RO ERFTER - BW R
fezdlm  ELEBMIBARRMERE
BIRARRIRE 2 ER LR L R RIE

RRBFEER EAEERRA A RBAE &
AR R AU http:/www.waichiholdings.com
& iR E AR AT o

SRS NEEEAEMRREEN  A2RERE
BHERNFREER - AARIEERE M MENE
HPHRFEREE  YRARRTEEAKAR
S RFHRERGFER EHRARENRR
SRBEEAER EEHRIBRAGREZ @R
#=ER - BRERENEE(WE) -

BRAFAGHR/EFGRANRZBRIEHR
EERHEBKE - ARBEBRFEFRERE
BEE IEREBEFHRAELE - SN
ZHEN T EAFEHE AR ANRFAFAE
0 7T 17 Bh & == o] FE B SR S T TR B S AR BB ¥R
EHRELABFIRENER ° 1A BRIRIER
Bt A AR B AN AN R B 2 3B AN R o ARIR
THRA - EFeRREERRBFASETR
BRR - ARBNEAKNE LEM - WEHE
TR ZX PR E B AN X R UE(E H A o

a7



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Any shareholder(s) individually or collectively holding 10% or more
of the Company’s total issued share capital shall be entitled to
request the Board in writing to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Upon receiving such request, the Board shall issue a
notice of extraordinary general meeting within 21 days and hold an
extraordinary general meeting within two months from the receipt
of such request. If within 21 days of the receipt of such request the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s)
proposing to convene an extraordinary general meeting in writing may
himself/herself (themselves) convene an extraordinary general meeting
in the same manner.

Procedures for shareholders to put enquires to the
Board

Shareholders must prove to the Board that they really own the equity
interests of the Company (e.g. by providing shareholding documents
etc.). The Company suggests shareholders should submit their
enquiries in writing (including by email, facsimile and mail) and provide
sufficient contact details so that the Company can process their
enquiries in a proper and timely manner.

Shareholders may contact the Company via the following means:

Address: 6/F, Liven House, 63 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: barry.cheung@waichi.com

Tel No.: (852) 3760 2805

Fax No.: (852) 2341 8144
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Constitutional documents

Rights of the shareholders are also provided under the articles
of association of the Company. The articles of association of the
Company which was adopted on 27 October 2014 was drafted in line
with provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which came
into effect on 3 March 2014, the Listing Rules and current corporate
practices. An up-to-date consolidated version of the articles of
association of the Company is available on the Company’s website
and the HKEX's website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BR dEREIHE

60

OVERVIEW

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited has adhered to the
philosophy of environment-friendly management and fulfilled
its commitment to caring for staff needs, enhancing product
quality and performing social responsibilities for many years.
This environmental, social and governance report, as the first
one of Wai Chi Holdings, will give an overview through various
aspects including environment-friendly management, working
environment, supply chain management, product responsibility
and community engagement covering each of the Group
members in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Huizhou and Yichang for
the year 2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

a. Qualifications for environmental management

Wai Chi Group formulated effective Environmental
Management System and Internal Compliance Manual in
order to identify and comply with the laws and regulations
on environmental protection in different countries and
regions. The production materials and products also satisfy
the environmental protection requirements and standards
in all the regions where the suppliers and customers
located. We have strictly controlled the use of the Group’s
vehicles, water and electricity consumption in each plant,
reduced the use of materials and hazardous chemicals
that are harmful to the environment, and by manufacturing
green products for customers, we are rewarded the title
of Excellent Supplier in Environmental Protection by our
customers.

We engage independent external evaluation institutions
regularly to conduct professional identification on sewage
inspection and others and have obtained international
environmental quality certifications such as ISO 14001:2004
Environmental Management System certification and
IECQ QC 08000:2005 Hazardous Substance Process
Management compliance certification.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

b.

Energy-saving and emission reduction

The Group strictly monitors each production step, and
by designing and improving the production process to
minimize and control the amount of gummed paper,
tapes and other packaging materials we use. We have
been improving the office environment to save energy and
resources and post slogans of energy-saving and emission
reduction in each plant. Staffs are required to switch off all
the electrical appliances, lights and office equipments while
leaving, and we also give reminders and make spot check
regularly so that our staffs’ awareness of environmental
protection keeps awake. We regularly analyze the spending
situation of gummed paper and duplication paper, promote
double-sided printing, strive for paperless office and also
encourage our staffs to choose public transport for green
commuting.

Development and Application of
Environmental Products

The Group is committed to research and development
of energy-saving products, expanding ideas and making
exploration with great courage; we take environmental
protection as our responsibility and strives to promote
energy-saving lighting product project in relation to street
lights and large sized public facilities of the government.
We actively advocate to replace traditional lamp with LED
lights to increase the lifetime of lamp and save a lot of
energy consumption volume. In the long term, this also
saves costs, decreases energy losses and reduces carbon
emission. The Group has sold more than 74,000 energy-
saving lighting products in 2017 (2016: more than 62,000).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B - tERELHE

3. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT

62

a.

Human capital and quality training

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has a total of
2,379 employees, the majority of which are young
and middleaged people between 20 and 40 years old,
guaranteeing the production impetus and the spirit of
focus and encouraging innovative thinking. During the year,
we irregularly held over 100 training seminars on various
topics for different positions with over 2,000 participants,
to constantly improve the professionalism and professional
skills of employees in every aspect. The Group endeavors
to attract and cultivate highly skilled technical personnel
with various benefits and packages. Both of Shenzhen
Company and Huizhou Company have been accredited by
local governments as high-tech enterprises and enjoyed
corresponding tax concessions. The Group has provided
over 970 hours of training to employees in 2017 (2016:
over 680 hours).

The Group adopts the performance appraisal system, and
evaluates employees’ performance monthly with scientific
and comprehensive performance indicators, and such
results are used as important references for employees’
salary adjustment, promotion and annual bonus rating.
We encourage employees to explore their own strengths,
without limiting their positions and profession, respect
employees’ personal career planning, support them to try
and challenge works in different areas, open up horizontal
and vertical position development channels, and always put
talented and competent people first.

Workplace safety

The Group is committed to providing employees with a safe
and healthy working environment, abiding by the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Rights and Interests
of Workers and other applicable laws and regulations. The
Group conducts strict and effective management of its
production elements such as personnel, machinery, objects
and operating methods in the production site, carries out
Safety Month activities on a regular basis and informs the
inspection and evaluation results to all employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

b.

Workplace safety (continued)

All new employees will be disbursed a Staff Manual to
ensure that employees are kept informed in a timely manner
of the Company’s general information, management
requirements and corporate culture etc., and we regularly
review and update the contents of Staff Manual in order
to keep up with the Company’s strategy and development
plan, and announce such contents on time at the Group’s
internal websites. In addition to making timely payments for
the pension and insurance on a pro-rata basis as required
by relevant laws, the Group also regularly maintains
commercial accident insurance for its employees. There
were no illnesses and casualties caused by work or other
material accidents and property loss incidents during the
year.

Care for our employees

Each subsidiary of the Group sets up a labor union.
Funds are appropriated to such union on a regular basis
for labor union activities, collection and resolution of
staff’'s suggestions and requests to protect vital interests
of individual employee. Collective birthday celebration
activities are organized regularly for the employees,
including carefully prepared dinner, entertainment programs
and birthday presents. A special fund for love donation is
set up by the Group and funds are accrued monthly as
the provision of love donation for special staff in special
conditions, making them imbued with a caring feeling and
building up a sense of belonging.

4. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

a.

We ensure to maintain a good communication and a
stable cooperative relationship with the suppliers so as to
make sure that the supply chain work with high efficiency.
The quality, timeliness and reliability of the product are
guaranteed by the setup of an independent raw material
quality inspection and testing department, achievement of a
scheduled delivery with suppliers, and warranty agreement
tracking.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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4. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

b.

All the information of the suppliers are maintained in the
ERP system. A supplier assessment mechanism is in place
to perform a strict selection on the suppliers in respect
of qualification, material quality, intellectual property
qualification and price to ensure the suppliers meet the
production standards in terms of raw material quality, price
and production capacity.

A reasonable and effective price management mechanism
with a quotation team to review material prices is set up,
in which a price comparison and control for each kind of
materials is set for a timely reminder and periodic summary,
S0 as to make the procurement fair and transparent and to
maintain healthy competition.

5. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

64

a.

Qualification Certificates

We have been granted several qualifications, including ISO
9001:2008, I1SO 14001:2004 of Quality and Environment
Management System Certificates, and ISO/TS 16949:2009
of Quality Control System Certificates. By stringent and
careful implementation of the management and control
systems, the Group maintains an excellent standard for its
product quality and reliability in the industry.

Product R&D

In response to the characteristic of rapid technological
advancement in the LED backlight and LED lighting
industries, the Group has maintained strong R&D
capabilities, upgraded the skills required in the
production processes and actively improved the
production technologies. The self-built R&D centre has
core competitiveness in the industry, and its R&D team
is professional and dedicated with the capacity and
competency to develop on its own more than 1,000
LED backlight and lighting products, and has obtained
certain patents in China and Hong Kong. Some products
have been recognised by the Science, Industry, Trade
and Information Technology Commission of Shenzhen
Municipality as “Independent and Creative Products of
Shenzhen”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

5. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

C.

Quality Control

The Group has fully adopted quality management system,
every employee involved shall be responsible for the
product quality. The employees shall strive to achieve
a perfect and smooth procedure from understanding
customer needs to providing after-sales services. The
Group has purchased a series of advanced production and
testing equipment with professional technical engineers,
committing to improving production technology and
enhancing output efficiency and product passing rate.
There are strict quality control processes from procurement,
design, production to storage. The processes include
incoming materials management, sample reliability testing,
and quality inspection during the process, ultimate quality
control and quality assessment experiment for finished
goods.

After-sales Service and Information
Maintenance

We undertake the responsibility for each product and
provide customers with warranty and replacement
services. After the expiry of warranty period, we can
continue to provide maintenance services and only charge
for necessary costs. We have been well-received for
providing excellent products and services to the majority
of customers. There are no substantial complaints, returns
or return process incidents arising from product quality
problems during the year.

We strive to protect customer information. All customer
information is maintained in ERP system. Different
management and operation authorities are designed and
open to every process and different positions. The system
information is updated in a timely manner, audited by
levels and offsite backup to ensure the information of every
customer can be properly kept and maintained.

6. ANTI-CORRUPTION

a.

The Group pursues business ethics and is committed to
honest operation. Any form of bribery, fraud, extortion,
corruption and money laundering are strictly prohibited.
The Group has established the inspection mechanism to
regularly inspect the execution of relevant systems in each
department, and is devoted to reducing adverse effects
on the normal business activities because of improper
operational systems, procedures and regulations.
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6.

66

ANTI-CORRUPTION (continued)

b. The Group has established an internal audit department
which is responsible for the Independent Audit Committee
directly and controls and improves all procedures of each
company in the Group to keep the operation system and
procedures of the company consistent with its operational
development and changes. The Group has established a
reporting and complaint mechanism and opened internal
and external access for impeachment, which enables the
workplaces to achieve an operational mechanism of high
standards and meet the strict requirement for fairness and
equity.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

We have been insisting on our commitment in social
responsibility and the contributions to environmental protection
through the development of new LED energy-saving products.
We actively participated in the government’s street lamps
replacement project and popularized the positive effects on
saving resources that replace the traditional lamps with LED
lamps. During the Hong Kong International Lighting Fair (Autumn
Edition) in 2017.

We have taken the initiative to respond to the government’s call.
In March 2017, we sponsored the old bridge reconstruction
project in Boluo county, Huizhou city. In July, we donated to the
“Charity activities for poverty alleviation” in Shenzhen. We are
concerned about charity, culture and education, and encourage
the employees to participate in volunteer activities, and in the
future we also plan to participate in more public welfare activities
or projects.

SUMMARY

The Group adheres to the essence of corporate culture of “bring
light into life”, and has been insisting on the contribution to the
development of global lighting industry with superb technology,
reasonable prices and quality services. We strive for excellence,
continuous innovation, and aim to create more environmentally
friendly products, commit to the career of environmental
protection, promote energy conservation and bring about
benefits to customers, shareholders, employees and the whole
society.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

feikPia

Shineﬂ)inﬁ

TO THE MEMBERS OF WAI CHI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wai Chi
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
74 to 166, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

VALUATION AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT 78

OF INVENTORIES

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 101.

The key audit matter
HRERSE

FARELER
FAREZFRENRMNEXHER BRI
AHESZ SV BRRNEL T ERRAEEN
T - 2FFERRMABZBNEAMBERER
YHEFKERERNE S TRE - MRML
TRZEFFREREBLER -

2 EREERTE

B2 AVBHRANEF17REI01 B2
";‘ﬁ °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRIREZRMMAEESEREE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group maintained
inventories of approximately HK$207,631,000, net of
allowance for inventories of approximately HK$72,438,000.

The management has concluded that there is no further
impairment required in respect of these inventories. This
conclusion required significant management judgement.

20175612 HA318 -

S5 E/7FEFE4207,631,000/%8

TT(HIBRF S B #)72,438,000/8 7T ) °
EEEHT  BRELRSHFREE—DRE - ZEmEX

=t
BEEEEHEAHE -

68

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group’s
impairment assessment on inventories and the management
estimations or judgements on the net realisable value of
inventories based on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions.

We have checked with the net realisable value for inventories
up to the date of this report and discussed with the
management in respect of the adequacy of the allowance
made by the management based on ageing analysis and
individual assessments. We have challenged the assumptions
and critical judgements used by the management by assessing
the reliability of the management’s past estimates and taking
into account the ageing at year end and subsequent usage
status after year end.

BMOEZRRFEERBESOMNERERRERTR
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RECOVERABILITY AND IMPAIRMENT

ASSESSMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB ERE

W B 0 9 T WS [ 1 % 3l B4

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the B2 A VSRR 18RE102E 1058

accounting policies on pages 102 to 105.

The key audit matter
FAREXSE

AR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRNEXBNAEEREESEIR

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$392,747,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$34,975,000.

We have identified recoverability and impairment
assessment of trade receivables as a key audit matter
because the amount of allowance for impairment loss
required significant management judgement.

72017 12 A 31 B EEBRMEREROA
392,747,000/ 7T (0B 25HREE1E4934,975,0008 7T ) °

AT A UL BR RO AT U B 1% BB E R4 85 R R S

B AR EBESETREREFLERH
K5 o
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Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group’s
impairment assessment on trade receivables and the
management estimations or judgements on the recoverability
on the outstanding balances.

We have discussed the indicators of possible impairment with
the management and, where such indicators were identified,
assessing the management’s impairment testing. We have
discussed with the management in respect of the adequacy
of the provision of impairment made by the management.
We have challenged the assumptions and critical judgements
used by the management by assessing the reliability of the
management’s past estimates and taking into account the
ageing at year end and cash received after year end, as well as
the recent creditworthiness of each debtor.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

72

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Kwan Chi Fung.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwan Chi Fung

Practising Certificate Number: PO6614

Hong Kong
23 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FelRax

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

UhEES T8 FBTT

Revenue S -C 7 1,677,966 1,321,601
Cost of sales SHE R (1,459,129) (1,160,336)
Gross profit EF 218,837 161,265
Other income and other gains H AW A R B Ath iz 7 16,310 23,901
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MO HERX (23,943) (23,625)
Administrative expenses TS (87,638) (75,227)
Other operating expense Hipg g ms (18,715) (18,454)
Research and development expenses e (51,873) (38,212)
Finance costs IR IDN 9 (24,646) (22,866)
Profit before tax FR AU 28,332 6,782
Income tax expense FriSHifx 10 (6,002) (383)
Profit for the year FEFE 11 22,330 6,399
HK$ HK$

BT BT

Earnings per share BREF

Basic and diluted ERREE 14 0.10 0.03
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FelRaRAMZEmka®R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
Profit for the year FENE 22,330 6,399
Other comprehensive income (expense) that HETgEEH S EEEEM
may be subsequently reclassified to profit HisZEIKRA (BR)
or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of HMEGINETSEEERIE H =58
foreign operations 41,702 (33,685)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for FEXAEVA XA
the year 64,032 (27,286)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FaMBKiiE

As at 31 December 2017 7201712 A31H

76

2017 2016
201745 2016%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
UhEES Ti#n FBTT
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN ] 15 245,238 231,948
Prepaid lease payments FERNEERIE 16 37,665 36,057
Deferred taxation IRIEFRETE 25 6,586 5,120
289,489 273,125
Current assets MEEE
Inventories "rE 17 207,631 191,838
Prepaid lease payments FERNEERIE 16 915 856
Trade receivables FEURER SR 18 392,747 437,263
Bills receivables JEM & 18 26,922 60,461
Prepayments, deposits and other FERNRIE - EE2 Rk
receivables o FEUGRIE 19 400,157 95,134
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 20 23,926 =
Pledged bank deposits BEEFRITIFK 21 144,353 238,467
Deposits with bank RITFRK 21 186,623 _
Bank balances and cash BITHEBEIRE 21 111,722 152,341
1,494,996 1,176,360
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade payables FEITERFR 22 194,387 154,167
Bills payables ERNEE 22 327,304 351,656
Other payables and accruals Hi N RIERERER 22 262,992 42,101
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITE K — M F R EIH 23 321,441 272,920
Obligations under finance leases REHEEIER
— due within one year — M EREIH 24 974 3,051
Income tax payables FERTPTIS L 9,706 8,115
1,116,804 832,010
Net current assets MENEEFE 378,192 344,350
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReEMBRAER

As at 31 December 2017 7A2017512A31H

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
UhEE T FHETT
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRHEE 667,681 617,475
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Bank borrowings RITENK
— due more than one year —RNZPEB R 23 - 2,660
Obligations under finance leases BMERSEE
— due more than one year —RZ A1 EERIH 24 90 1,607
Corporate bond NEES 26 1,776 1,736
Government grants BT ED 27 19,793 29,496
Deferred taxation RIEFL IR 25 14 =
21,673 35,499
Net assets BERE 646,008 581,976
Capital and reserves BARGEE
Share capital i 28 2,168 2,168
Reserves 1 643,840 579,808
Total equity g 646,008 581,976
The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 166 were FT74E166 B MERE M SRR E R 2018F3 A
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 BAREEGHERKETIE - WA TIIRE
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: RE
Mr. Yiu Chi To Mr. Chen Chung Po
BhRREl S PREERESEE
Director Director
EZE EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEQEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

Share Share Statutory ~ Translation Merger Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R R (E B B e REMNE At

HK§000  HK$000  HKF000  HK$000  HKS000  HK§000  HK$'000
Th Thr Thr ThT Thr Thr ThL

(Note a) (Note b)
(Mizka) (WD)
At 1 January 2016 1201651 A 18 2,000 299,321 42,667 (7,792) 34,561 205,681 576,438
Profit for the year FEME - - - - - 6,399 6,399
Other comprehensive expense  EEE 2 FRIX
for the year
- exchange differences arising  —/85MEREER
from foreign operations EiEH - - - (33,689) - - (33,685)
Total comprehensive (expense) FE 2 (FIx)
income for the year WA B - - - (33,685) - 6,399 (27,286)
Issue of new sharesbyway ~ LAECE A RE(THIRA
of placing (Note 28) (Fizk28) 168 33,482 - - - = 33,650
Share issue expense kiR - (826) - - - - (826)
Transfer 2 - - 2,376 - - (2,376) -
At 31 December 2016 12016128318 2,168 331,977 45,043 (41,477) 34,561 209,704 581,976
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HFeHEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

Share Share Statutory  Translation Merger Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
VTS RipiEE ke E ikt BbtE REHNE &i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL THT THT TR TR TR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Mfita) (Mizko)
At 1 January 2017 201751 A18 2,168 331,977 45,043 (41,477) 34,561 209,704 581,976
Profit for the year EERE - - - - - 22,330 22,330
Other comprehensive income ~ FEEMZEWA
for the year
- exchange differences arising ~ —/B9hEBE AR
from foreign operations EiEe - - - 41,702 - - 41,702
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 AL
for the year - - - 41,702 - 22,330 64,032
Transfer EH - - 4,458 - - (4,458) -
At 31 December 2017 2017812318 2,168 331,977 49,501 225 34,561 227,576 646,008

Notes: 3T

(@)  As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), @ FEAREME(PE]ERBEARARTRT
the Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC are required PR K BT B A RIZAR R BUE AR ROE
to appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) as RETIBRERBENE(REREATFEES
determined in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations in PRC, BI10% BETERE  EERELEBHEFMER
to statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered 50% o BB E I REEERDRRE THESES A
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of a RIYEL ©
dividend to equity owners.

(b)  Merger reserve represented the difference between share capital of the new () EHFEEEFERAGRAERNERRASEME
holding company and the aggregate of the share capital of the then holding XA RIRE BHERR A IR A 4B 5E R =58 o
company of the Group and the companies comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, as part of the pre-listing HZE2013F 12431 B ILFE @ fEA LEMATEAMN
reorganisation, the Company issued 135 ordinary shares of HK$1,000,000 —#5H + ARRIBEBENTE A RIEIT136RFRE
each which, through its subsidiaries, were used to subscribe for new shares {E1,000,000/8 TR E B - AERBHRESER
issued and allotted by Wai Chi Group (HK) Limited (“Wai Chi Group”) and BRAB([EXER])BTREZEOFRG - I
became the holding company of the Group. The difference between the KRAREBNZERATF - BITRMHDMABRIBER
proceed from the issuance of shares and the then share capital and capital RENERBRAREANZEENZENE GHEE

reserve subscribed was recognised in the merger reserve. R o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MeBERE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recongised in respect

of trade and other receivables
Government grants
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment, net

Loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables

Write-down of inventories

Reversal of allowance for inventories

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables

Decrease in bills receivables

Increase in prepayment, deposit and
other receivables

Increase (decrease) in trade payables

Decrease in bills payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from (used in) operations
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
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2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#n FHT
RS EE)
FRA5 AIAE 28,332 6,782
FELATRIA -
B AR 24,646 22,866
FEWA (7,224) (7,298)
Y% - B MERETE 37,658 39,422
T 1 LS BR 5% % L Ath FE LU SR IR
EREREEBED (1,076) (599)
TR 483 B (3,803) (12,816)
TEN A E RIAEE 889 899
HEWE - BE R
RIBEEFE 690 216
MBI - WRE kAR EEE 55 24
BLREUER TR R E A R UK
FIEMER AR EE R 11,276 1,715
MRFE 7,439 16,739
GFERERD (2,720) -
EEESEEE
BERLR= 96,162 67,950
FEGEMmRL (6,995) 234
FEUBR FOR A (35 00) 60,371 (113,559
RN E R 36,447 136,718
TENFIE - B R
H Atb FEUGRIBLE N (290,127) (65,151)
FETERFIE I CRLA) 29,613 (20,505)
NSy (45,283) (68,444)
H At B SRIB N BT B 4L N 201,085 1,697
REFEREE(FA) RS 81,273 (51,060)
B RS ERAESH (6,071) (1,359)
BEESAEE(FTA)
R&FE 75,202 (52,419)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ﬁ' =1 Iﬂﬁlllli

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#&x FHETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Placements of time deposits TATHFR (180,049) =
Placements of pledged bank deposits HFEABEBRITIER (86,763) (675,177)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEWE  WEREE (35,915) (13,630)
Purchase of available-for-sale investment BEAMHREERE (23,083) —
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IRIBEHEARITER 192,910 554,549
Interest received BUHE 7,224 7,298
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ﬁ’i%% 5 &
equipment RABFT{S /IR 312 11,685
Withdrawal of time deposits HRERE BATE R - 29,505
Repayments from related companies BN RIER - 467
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING REEJE(FTA) S
ACTIVITIES REFE (125,364) 14,697
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& E
New bank borrowings raised FTIBIRITIEK 423,116 339,195
Government grants received BHBSHEED 3,988 11,484
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D FT1S RIE - 33,650
Proceeds from issue of bond BITESFFS A - 2,000
Repayment of bank borrowings 1 BRIRTTER (395,348) (396,765)
Interest paid BERAFE (24,606) (22,830)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases BEREHRERER (3,594) (4,218)
Share issue expenses BT DB - (826)
Bond issue expense BHFEITHX - (300)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING MEFEMB (A RLEHE
ACTIVITIES 3,556 (38,610)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBALZEED
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA R (46,606) (76,332)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MA1BNRERIRSEFEY
1 JANUARY 152,341 240,013
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREF BT E 5,987 (11,340)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THEEND #12A31H&RBHNEERIR
OF 31 DECEMBER, represented by bank 25EY - SEMRITHERR
balances and cash Hg 111,722 152,341
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82

GENERAL

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands on 16 August 2013 and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2014. Its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Yiu Chi To. The address of the registered
office of the Company is Offshore Incorporations (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and the principal place
of business of the Company is 6th Floor, Liven House, 63 King
Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 36.

The functional currency of the Company and the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) while
that of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) are Renminbi (‘RMB”). For the purpose
of presenting the financial statements, the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
adopted HK$ as its presentation currency which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company.

—REH
BEERERAA(ERARE]) T —HR
2013F8H16 A RIEFH SRS R VAL
EHEFMAXUNEREERAT - M
HIRHR2014F11 A18HEA B E R
SAERAR (B ER M - K
BIRERT AKEB L E - ARE M
% = B HY 1t 4iE & Offshore Incorporations
(Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands -
MZAR A EZEEMEREELEBEWN
K635 F g AE6HE -

ARAEEREREER - EBARR
TEXRBENMIEES6 -

ARRARREEEMAZHIHE R FEL
REBELET((BR])  MRPEARK
FEI([HRE ) RSZRKE A RIS
SARE(TAR®E]) - L27IRB5EHEKM
E o ARFREMB AR (X st 48
B ) RBE RARBREEBENETAE

258k -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong

Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and

Interpretations (“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle:

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses

Except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments do not prescribe a specific method to fulfil the new
disclosure requirements. However, the amendments indicate
that one way is to provide a reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities.

The application of amendments to HKAS 7 has resulted in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
especially a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in Note
34. On initial application of the amendments, the Group is not
required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods. Apart from the additional disclosure in Note 34, the
directors of the Company considered that these amendments
have had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
& Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (‘FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of
HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 (2014) to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

86

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014), it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses should always be
accounted for. The amount of expected credit losses is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FERAMET REBETEBIEEH

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HER([FEBMIFIHEZER D)
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (48)

E 987018 8 R SRR AT I AR
BB BEHREER(F

HFBIMBHREERFWR (20145 ) Bt

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk
component can be identified and measured and does not
distinguish between financial items and non-financial items.
The new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes as a
basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary
to exhibit eligibility and compliance with the requirements
in HKAS 39 using metrics that are designed solely for
accounting purposes. The new model also includes
eligibility criteria but these are based on an economic
assessment of the strength of the hedging relationship.
This can be determined using risk management data. This
should reduce the costs of implementation compared with
those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces
the amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken
only for accounting purposes.

TAGE)

BB B EERIFE IR (20145 ) 5|
AFER - AFAREEHRFEENS
b K% SE < b B B OB 4 30 ) B P 1T
R EREEARETEET - B8
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BIZE395% - B BFEFERESH
AErERRBERRAER BB E
B39 AR IE R AR - FiE
ANMBIEARIZE - BREZEER
SRR RR ST AE TS -
AFARRERSEETE - BRRE
Bt ERIF 395 MRS AR
A ERPEEITRIAA - BERE
RTERSTEEERENOTEE -

BEMBRELERNFE IR (20145 ) 10
201851 A1 A 2 KB FE MR &
2 BRIRATEM -

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company has performed a preliminary
analysis of the Group’s financial instruments as at 31 December
2017 based on the fact and circumstances existing at that
date. The directors of the Company have assessed the impact
of adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) on the Group’s results and
financial position, including the classification categories and the
measurement of financial assets, and disclosures, as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group’s available-for-sale investment will either
be measured as fair value through profit or loss or be
designated with irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income the changes in fair value.

(b) Impairment

The directors of the Company expect to apply the
simplified approach and record lifetime expected credit
losses that are estimated based on the present value of
all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables and other receivables. The application of the
expected credit loss model may result in earlier recognition
of credit losses for trade and other receivables and increase
the amount of impairment allowance recognised for these
items.

The directors of the Company will perform a more detailed
analysis which considers all reasonable and supportable
information for the estimation of the effect of adoption of
HKFRS 9 (2014). Based on the preliminary assessment,
the directors of the Company expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) will not have other material impact on
amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

(i)  Identify the contract with the customer;
(i)  Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
(i) Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

(vy Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The major sources of revenue of the Group are sales of goods.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised for each of the
performance obligations when control over a good is transferred
to a customer. The directors of the Company have preliminarily
assessed each type of the performance obligations and consider
that the performance obligations are similar to the current
identification of separate revenue components under HKAS 18
Revenue. Furthermore, HKFRS 15 requires the transaction price
to be allocated to each performance obligation on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis, which may affect the timing and
amounts of revenue recognition, and results in more disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the directors
of the Company expect that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
have a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised based on the existing business model of the Group as
at 31 December 2017.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while
interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17
Leases. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$4,986,000
as disclosed in Note 31. Out of this balance, an amount of
approximately HK$2,086,000 represents operating leases
with original lease terms of over one year in which the Group
will recognise right-to-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities unless they are exempt from the reporting obligations
under HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company expect that,
apart from the changes in the measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above, the adoption of HKFRS 16 will
not have other material impact on amounts reported in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

FER#TE] RAREET BB
ﬁfﬂ“é%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂb
II‘E

EEME R RENBIFTET R EZE
RIEBMEHRELENGE

SR BHELEAFE16RHEE)
M2017F12 A31H » NEBE K] HE
SR AETH G AEIEH) B4,986,0005% 7T (5 A0
FES1FTIRER) o BRtb & fRIh - [RTEHAER A
—FHKETHE X /2,086,000 &
FARAEEBERERAELEEREETRES
&+ BRIFFERRETE SIS RE LR
FIGHBETHRERME - AR EETE
B B EXFTREETE  2YIREEE
G BRI B SRS R 165 T e
HASBELGE VB HMERANRSE SHEN
HhBBARFE -

ERERBUR
RAMBRERDERE B ARAA
MEBHBRELARE - o HAY
BRREYRFES LHRAREED
AEBIRENERBRE -

RA TSR DIRE L AT RR -

B RA—RIER A E R RRERENA
A -

AREERFAERETEMS (KRBT
BINMS2RBEERTHEERLT - R
BRFRZTHEEEATUNMSERRAE
AXMWERBITFRE)  TwZERE
BRI ERBRNEREMEETAET
5 - RAEFEMNFER T XEINER
BRI -

EEGEREIAT »

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained through:
(i a contractual arrangement with other vote holders; (i) rights
arising from other contractual arrangements; (iii) the Group’s
voting rights and potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of
the above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
lease or an operating lease separately based on the assessment
as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payment in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to stage-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liabilities for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress
as described below are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

100

EEBeR(48)

ME - BERRE

WxE - BELRE(BEFSERELES
HEEmIRBERIETRRENET - T
BFE T XAt fFE 2 TA2 ) 1A AN R H 1%
R ERRFIRERR(IMAB)NEZE M
Bk ARR

WETNHEBESFRME - BE KR EE
B (ERIERIN G AIE R F B S AL
HA AR = BRI EE)FER o ([ArT Al fE
BFEH - MAEBERTET AR SRED
RF LR - WEHEI (AT E S 2k
1TIZE o

THEEZELE HEXTERAZRNYE
AR C R ER R - 5K
ABREEXER  URGIaEREEM
5 )REAKRE ST HREANEAE K
AR o ZFEYRNER T R AIMERE AIER 1R
DEBBEERRNYE  BEMKE © &%
FEENERIRARE SRR EEbY)
KEEMRMEERIGRHEITE °

REBEHERANEENARAEHRF
HiRE e AEER —EEFIEFE - A
M fWARRES EEE SN EEEREE
SrEHE  BERAHERHEAEAF
HIBEETENE -

Y% - BB MEREER B TN B TR
TeRNEERZEEMEERKEHE
MR IR - HERBEYE - K5

REBEE FrELNEMRERER TR
BEMNHEMSRAREREENZET
8 WNBSER -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | &R AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or
less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash as
defined above.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment
loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. Al
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The
Group designated available-for-sale investment as available-for-
sale financial assets on initial recognition of the item.

Debt securities held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade, bills
and other receivables, that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the credit period of 15 to 180
days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade, bills and other receivables, where the carrying amounts
are reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade, bills or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, bills payables,
other payables and accruals, bank borrowings, obligations under
finance leases and corporate bond are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generation units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s leasing
transactions, net realisable value of inventories and value in use
of property, plant and equipment for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follow:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain deductible
temporary differences. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
values of deferred tax assets of the Group were approximately
HK$6,586,000 (2016: approximately HK$5,120,000). Further
details of which are disclosed in Note 25.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The determination
of the useful lives involves management’s estimation. The
Group assesses annually the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation in the
year and the estimate will be changed in the future period. As at
31 December 2017, the carrying values of property, plant and
equipment of the Group were approximately HK$245,238,000
(2016: approximately HK$231,948,000), net of accumulated
depreciation of approximately HK$266,922,000 (2016:
approximately HK$213,747,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines whether the property, plant and
equipment are impaired whenever there is indication of
impairment presented. The impairment loss for property, plant
and equipment are recognised for the amounts by which
the carrying amounts exceed their recoverable amounts,
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates such as
future revenue and discount rates. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying values of property, plant and equipment of the Group
were approximately HK$245,238,000 (2016: approximately
HK$231,948,000), net of accumulated impairment loss
of approximately HK$13,614,000 (2016: approximately
HK$12,722,000).

Estimated allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
of inventories at the end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items identified
that are no longer suitable for sale or use. The Group makes
allowance for inventories based on the assessment of the net
realisable value. The management estimates the net realisable
value for inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of inventories of the Group was approximately
HK$207,631,000 (2016: approximately HK$191,838,000), net
of accumulated allowances for inventories of approximately
HK$72,438,000 (2016: approximately HK$63,165,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the
customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined by the
review of their current credit information. The Group continuously
monitors collections and payments from its customers and
maintains a provision for estimated credit losses based upon its
historical experience. Credit losses have historically been within
the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to monitor
the collections from customers and maintain an appropriate
level of estimated credit losses. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables of the Group
were approximately HK$431,633,000 (2016: approximately
HK$461,472,000), net of accumulated allowances of impairment
losses of trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$35,769,000 (2016: approximately HK$25,236,000).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
There are certain transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination may be uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax liabilities based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of income tax payables was approximately
HK$9,706,000 (2016: approximately HK$8,115,000).

Available-for-sale investment

As described in Note 6, the directors of the Company use their
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The carrying amount of the available-for-sale investment as at
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$23,926,000 (2016:
nil). Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in Note 6.
The directors of the Company believe that the chosen valuation
techniques and assumptions are appropriate in determining the
fair value of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consist of net debt (which
includes bank borrowings, obligations under finance leases,
corporate bond, net of pledged bank deposits, deposits with
bank and bank balances and cash) and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, issuance of new
shares as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
borrowings.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

5. EXEBEE

AEBNEAEEE EERASEARE
BONKELS  AREBBLEKR

=
=

mEeR - WO RBRRERFALR - &
SEAERRIE EEF LRI

AEENEARBHESFE(BREIRT
B3 - MEHEEEE - RRES - {IkKE
HIRITER - BRITERRBITEHRLER
BIARARBEAAREEE(BREE
TIBRA R i ) 4ELEK, ©

ARREZTEPRABEALERE  EPFR
EREARARESRERBEOER -
AEEBEBIRNE - BITH - AR
BITHEREERAFEEERENE
e

MBETA

Financial assets EREE
Available-for-sale investment AMHNERE
Loans and receivables B EWGRIE

(including bank balances and cash)

Financial liabilities ot =R
Amortised cost B AN

(BRRITESRLEAS)

B T EREERI

2017 2016

20175 20164

HK$’000 HK$’'000

T FHET

23,926 -

901,253 912,741

925,179 912,741

880,214 816,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
available-for-sale investment, pledged bank deposits, deposits
with bank, bank balances and cash, trade payables, bills
payables, other payables and accruals, obligations under finance
leases, bank borrowings and corporate bond. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. During the year ended
31 December 2017, approximately 5% (2016: approximately 2%)
of the Group’s sales are denominated in United States dollars
(“US$”) and approximately 12% (2016: approximately 30%) of
total cost of sales are denominated in US$ which are different
from the functional currencies of the group entities carrying out
the transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Also, certain trade, bills and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, trade, bill and other payables and bank borrowings
are denominated in RMB, US$, HKS, JPY and other currencies
which are currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

6.

Assets

BT H(&)
B ERERE B RERBRGR)

hiGEbR (1)
Bz bR (&)
BEAh » BT REUERTN « FEUEEIE & E b fE
WFE - e MIRTTA S - IENERR &
ST ZE 9 Ko E At FE AT BB A KSR AT FUAA
R m &1 BHERAHEEEE
e EE LN E M EEE T E - AEER
MEMRUINEAEESEEERSEAGE
FEREED T -

Liabilities

EE af&

2017
20175

2016 2017 2016
20164 20175 20164

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T FHETT T FHET
RMB AREE 4,849 1,190 - -
uss$ ETT 24,152 116,890 31,938 96,051
HK$ BT 12,117 5,548 777 769
JPY =] - - 2,549 -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the directors of the Company continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to RMB, US$, HK$ and JPY.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase or decrease in the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2016:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for a
5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where the respective
functional currencies strengthen 5% (2016: 5%) against the
relevant currency. For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of the
respective functional currencies against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and the balances below would be negative.

BT H(&)
B EMEE B ERBER ()

% AR ()
B ()
BREDT

AEEEEEHARS £ BLLA
Em -

TRAVAEBFBAEEETENINEE
HABRINE T N 5% RS © 5%
(20164F : 5%) AN MEEZEEAB R
SONER R ATE AL R - KRB
[ 1 SN e 225 32 A e B B) AT o BURK
EANTEBTE M ARBRIEI AINEFIENE
WEIEE - WRLIE REF)5%Mm B R RS
HIRMBBEEL AR - TXHIAIEE
BN S BB KRR INE FHES%
(20164F : 5% ) BEBRFL & TN - 45
BIEEE ™ 5 FERAIMNE B E5% (2016%F -
5%) « BEFBEEKXNEESENER
2 M T IBEEREE -

Impact on profit for the year HEEHNETE
RVB AR

Us$ =TT

HK$ BTT

JPY H

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

Ti#&x FAT

i) (202) (50)
(i) 303 (846)
i) (482) (179)
iv) 108 _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure on bank balances and
deposits with bank denominated in RMB at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) This is mainly attributable to exposure on bank balances, pledge
bank deposits, trade, bills and other receivables, trade, bills and other
payables and bank borrowings denominated in US$ at the end of the
reporting period.

(i)~ This is mainly attributable to exposure on bank balances, trade and
other receivables and trade and other payables denominated in HK$ at
the end of the reporting period.

(iv)  This is mainly attributable to exposure on trade payables denominated
in JPY at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed rate available-for-sale investment (see Note 20), fixed-
rate pledged bank deposits (see Note 21), bank borrowings (see
Note 23) and obligations under finance leases (see Note 24). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank and
bank balances (see Note 21) and variable rate bank borrowings
(see Note 23). However, the exposure in bank balances is
minimal to the Group as the bank balances are all short-term in
nature. It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings and the fluctuation of PBOC
rate and LPR arising from the Group’s Renminbi denominated
borrowings.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point (2016: 50 basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management

personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would decrease/increase by approximately HK$641,000
(2016: post-tax profit increase/decrease by approximately
HK$210,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
borrowings.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as nil (2016: 17%) of
the total trade and bills receivables at 31 December 2017 was
due from the Group’s largest customer.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 44% (2016: 55%)
of the total trade and bills receivables at 31 December 2017 was
due from the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 95% (2016:
83%) of the total trade and bills receivables as at 31 December
2017.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
available unutilised trade financing and bank loan facilities
of approximately HK$452,058,000 (2016: approximately
HK$994,328,000). Details of which are set out in Note 23(e).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivatives
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of each
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H I FfE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. BIETA(SE)
Financial risk management objectives and BEEREREEHERBR(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RENESEM ()
As at 31 December 2017
R2017F12A31A
More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2years 5years Over 5 years cash flows amount
£33 BiBiE #i82 RER
H1ER BoweE  FEINSE 5 Renes IREfE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Ti#n Tign Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n
Trade payables [ 194,387 - - - 194,387 194,387
Bills payables ERSE 327,304 - - - 327,304 327,304
Other payables AfERTE 34,242 - - - 34,242 34,242
Bank borrowings RITHEH 331,772 - - - 331,772 321,44
Obligations under finance leases  BLATEEEIR 995 92 - - 1,087 1,064
Corporate bond AnlEH 160 160 480 2,120 2,920 1,776
888,860 252 480 2,120 891,712 880,214
As at 31 December 2016
R2016512A31R
More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years Over 5 years cash flows amount
EEX BiR1E ik A AR
HER BoR2E  FEIROF HBiRoE Renes KafE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TETL TET TATL
Trade payables [SRET 154,167 = = = 154,167 154,167
Bills payables ES 351,656 - - - 351,656 351,656
Other payables EftErzE 28,960 - - - 28,960 28,960
Bank borrowings RITER 278,337 435 1,45 1,247 281,264 275,580
Obligations under finance leases  BATEREE 3210 1,164 512 - 4,886 4,658
Corporate bond Gl 160 160 480 2,280 3,080 1,736
816,490 1,759 2,231 3,627 824,013 816,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in
the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2017, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$16,000,000
(2016: approximately HK$11,088,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that these bank borrowings
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to approximately
HK$17,427,000 (2016: approximately HK$11,423,000).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value

The available-for-sale investment is measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair value of the available-for-sale
investment is determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used).

2017 Annual Report | £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. MEITA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and BEEREREEHERBR(E)
policies (continued)
Fair value (continued) DRE(E)
Valuation Significant
Fair value technique unobservable
Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs inputs
fEERMR EAFUHE
RUTREZRAE DREBR TEMARE WARE
2016
20165
HK$'000
THL
Available-for-sale investment — Present value
unlisted funds quoted by the
23,926 N/A  Level 2 relevant bank N/A
AHEHERE - FETES BRI
TER FZR BE N
During the year, there were no transfers between levels of fair FRN - AAERBRSRELEERE o
value hierarchy.
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying KRAREERE  ARELEFERELA
amounts of current financial assets and financial liabilities B AR ER AR EARN B2 ME
recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest rate EXcmaEtE B a BN -
method in the consolidated financial statements approximate WEBRAEEAQNAEES °

their fair values due to their immediate or short-term maturities.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RRBESERE  EiRE M IEHRE A HE
amounts of the other non-current financial liabilities recorded at AR BB A A AR E M IER B < Bl
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method in the BEMNRAEEEQAAERS °

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER
GAINS

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes. Analysis of the Group’s revenue, other
income and other gains is as follows:

zs - EAthit AR bk =3

Wt —MEBBEFHEERNBE KRR
FEMCRRIE (FORR T M SH EARRATIIR) » AR
SRR UE « AU A RE MYz 5 4740
T

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&n FAT
Revenue Y as
Sales of goods HEEm 1,677,966 1,321,601
Other income and other gains Hg AR H itk 25
Bank interest income HRITALEWA 7,224 7,298
Government grants (Note) R BN (FfTRE) 3,803 12,816
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 Yz 5 - 1,662
Reversal of allowance on inventories FFEREBRD 2,720 =
Reversal of impairment loss recognised LR K BRR B L FE R IR
in respect of trade and other receivables TERA R E R R 1,076 599
Sales of scrapped materials SHE R 9 16
Sundry income FIEWA 1,478 1,510
16,310 23,901
Note: FfzE -

Included in the amount of government grants recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2017 of approximately HK$3,388,000 (2016:
approximately HK$11,484,000) were received from the PRC government
in respect of certain research projects and export encourage scheme, the
relevant granting criteria for which have been fulfilled and were immediately
recognised as other income for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2017, amount of approximately HK$415,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,332,000) were government grants recognised as deferred income
utilised during the year (see Note 27).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered
or provided. In addition, for both Light-Emitting Diode (“LED”)
backlight and LED lighting operations and sourcing business of
high-tech electronic components and products, the information
reported to the chief operating decision maker is further broken
down into different type of products and application of products.
The directors of the Company have chosen to organise the
Group around differences in products. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. LED backlight — Manufacture and trading of LED
backlight products in different sizes
and applications

2. LED lighting — Manufacture and trading of LED
lighting products for public and
commercial use

3. Sourcing business — Provision of high-tech electronic
components and products sourcing
business

124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

D EPEH ()
DR EE

REE T 2 52 E S H U T ST
o o

BZE20175F12A318 L FEE

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business Total
LEDE % LED#8RH RIS st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x Ti#x Ti#x T
REVENUE 1§

External sales SNERSHE 756,075 54,531 867,360 1,677,966
Segment profit ba= T IbE| 102,478 9,602 7,343 119,423
Unallocated income A ECUWA 8,702
Unallocated expenses AORAX (75,147)
Finance costs BF TSR AR (24,646)
Profit before tax BR A% A1 1 28,332

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE20165F12H31HILEE
LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business Total
LEDE ¢ LEDERRA PRUE 275 #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT T T FAT
REVENUE Yrzs

External sales INEREEE 762,716 57,319 501,566 1,321,601
Segment profit 7 EBFE 65,627 8,081 4,495 78,203
Unallocated income RABURA 11,085
Unallocated expenses RAAEH (59,640)
Finance costs EUR %N (22,866)
Profit before tax BR A5 B A 6,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, interest income, sundry income and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the Chief Executive
Officer for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segments:

D EPEH ()
P E S (€ )

LB B ST BUR E M ST A R E
GEBRE K - DEFETIE D FEERERE
ME - TERRRAITHRER EFME -
MBWA - FEEWA R DB ©
ERATHAHMREFRERDBREK
BRAHERE -

SEHEEREE

AEBIZAZREBEDHDEONEERE
BT :

Segment assets SEEE

2017 2016

20174 20164F

HK$’000 HK$’000

T8 FAT

LED backlight LEDE ¥t 856,005 714,976

LED lighting LEDHRRA 49,419 95,903

Sourcing business REE TS 353,806 190,654

Total segment assets HEEERE 1,259,230 1,001,533

Unallocated assets RO EE 525,255 447,952

Consolidated total assets EEERE 1,784,485 1,449,485
1 26 Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | {E&ZERER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEWER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) SEHEEREEE)
Segment liabilities SEaE

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THET
LED backlight LEDE 3t 544,766 478,117
LED lighting LEDAREA 54,147 98,435
Sourcing business BT 204,017 =
Total segment liabilities HEBRERATE 802,930 576,552
Unallocated liabilities KoL aE 335,547 290,957
Consolidated total liabilities meaEEs 1,138,477 867,509
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and RERHSHARBEROIESHEERNE

allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than — FMBEEIRELESH  BRTEE
deferred tax assets, available-for-sale investment, pledged MIBEE - At EIRE - BEER
bank deposits, deposits with bank, bank balances and TER ﬁﬁﬁrﬁ RITHBR RIS
cash and certain unallocated head office assets. Assets NETRABEEE - HEENE
used jointly by operating segments are allocated on the Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁﬂlﬁrffiﬁ”*ﬁﬁﬁ
basis of the revenues earned by individual reportable T—rHﬁZEﬁ@E 53

segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than — FBEENEZEENE - BRTER
income tax payables, bank borrowings, obligations under FriS%i fﬁfﬂﬁ?ﬁ’\ BEMEREE
finance leases, corporate bond and deferred tax liabilities. ’&TE%&LLHI BB - BEED
Liabilities for which operating segments are jointly liable are HFEFNER B &R 5D 7P ES At
allocated in proportion to segment revenue. @E ®

2017 Annual Report | £k 1 27



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H I FfE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

8. SEPEN(4])
DEBMEEREEE)
HZE20175F12A310 LEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business Unallocated Total
LEDE % LEDHREA RERER ROE =
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
Tt THT Fign Tt TRT
Amounts included in the FTAZ IR
measure of segment profit AHEEEN
or loss or segment assets: S8
Additions to non-current assets’ R EIEREI A E! 35,627 288 - - 35,915
Amortisation of prepaid lease BNRETIBEH
payments 510 379 - - 889
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BEX
and equipment RETE 36,676 982 - - 37,658
Impairment loss recognised in SR
respect of trade and other H b R IR R
receivables AR 11,001 275 - - 11,276
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BE &
plant and equipment, net RiEERFE 690 - - - 690
Loss on write-off of property, plant #5912 - BE ki
and equipment B 55 - - - 55
Reversal of imparment loss RN R E R
recognised in respect of trade TIRRERRRE
and other receivables iR (1,051) (25) - - (1,076)
Write down of inventories HFEMH 7,439 - - - 7,439
Reversal of allowance on M ERERE
inventories (2,644) (76) - - (2,720)
Amounts regularly provided to ~ EER{TRAFRLETR
the Chief Executive Officer but St ASSHERHHHE
not included in the measure EitENSHE
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:
Interest income FEUA - - - 7,224 7,224
Finance costs IR A - - - 24,646 24,646
Income tax expense FEHAY 2,406 14 3,582 - 6,002

i Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. AEWER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) SEHEEREE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HBE2016F12A31HIEFE
LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business  Unallocated Total
LEDE  LEDHRRR  HEEES RAOED a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAL TAT TAT

Amounts included in the AR EER

measure of segment profit SEHEEHEN
or loss or segment assets: S8
Additions to non-current assets*  REFRBBE! 13,566 745 = = 14,311
Amortisation of prepaid lease BEETUREH

payments 446 453 - - 899
Depreciation of property, mE - BEKRETE

plant and equipment 35,823 3,599 - - 39,422
Impairment loss recognised in BRI R E A

respect of trade and other W R IE M TR A

receivables IEER 1,096 619 - - 1,715
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER

plant and equipment REER 216 = = = 216
Loss on write-off of property, WEME  BER

plant and equipment RiEER 20 4 - = 24
Reversal of impairment loss T AR TR R

recognised in respect of trade REBERE

receivables (516) (83) - - (599)
Write-down of inventories WRES 12,455 4,284 - - 16,739

Amounts regularly provided to ~ EHIE{TRAHRLET
the Chief Executive Officer but st AR EiEXRH I HE
not included in the measure EftENSE:
of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Interest income FIEHA - - - (7,298) (7,298)

Finance costs B - - - 22,866 22,866

Income tax expense (credit) FEHRE (Ee) 84 (34) 333 = 383
& Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. # R EENBIRELERIBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017%F12 A31H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. SEPERI (&)
Revenue from major products KEEEEMBIWES
Analysis by type of products EBEMERES B2
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFiEx FET
LED backlight LEDE 3t
— Small dimension — /R 331,363 468,148
— Medium dimension — R RT 295,997 151,092
— Large dimension — KR~ 128,715 143,476
Sub-total NET 756,075 762,716
LED lighting LEDI&RAA
— Indoor lighting —ZENIRA 19,395 25,728
— QOutdoor lighting —=JNRAA 35,136 31,591
Sub-total NET 54,531 57,319
Sourcing business REE TS 867,360 501,566
Total N 1,677,966 1,321,601
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEWER(E)
Revenue from major products (continued) KEEFEEMBWKES(E
Analysis by application of products EBEEREREIS K2
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THET
LED backlight LEDE 3t
— Smartphone —HRETF - 230,508
— Automobile displays —HHBET 357,110 164,922
— Equipment displays — RSB 270,145 223,183
- Televisions — T 128,820 144,103
Sub-total NEF 756,075 762,716
LED lighting LEDHRER
— Public lighting — N FERR 34,839 33,271
— Commercial lighting — P R RREA 19,692 24,048
Sub-total NEF 54,531 57,319
Sourcing business BT 867,360 501,566
Total At 1,677,966 1,321,601
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017%F12 A31H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC
(country of domicile). The Group’s customers are mainly located
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers is
presented based on the location of customers as below:

8. AHMEN(H)
Hth 35 A
AR BB E RN T8 Roh B (AT E
BR) - AEENESEBURESRAF

AEEZREPHIBUER N KB INEES

The PRC =8
Hong Kong B
Others Efth

RS HTEAT ¢
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 FET
1,583,375 1,241,313
21,804 19,942
72,787 60,346
1,677,966 1,321,601

The Group’s information about its non-current assets is
presented based on location of the assets as below:

AEEREEMENESDHIERBEE

The PRC =a
Hong Kong BB

BRI
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fign TET
282,154 266,771
749 1,234
282,903 268,005

Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEPERI(4F)

Information about major customers

Details of the customers accounting for 10% or more of

FEEFER

aggregate revenue of the Group are as follows: W
2017
20174
HK$’000
Fi&x
Customer A** BEEA 460,290
Customer B* BEB*™ 343,904
Customer C* 2FEC* 328,957

EAREBE YR ETE10% I EHEFFHIF

2016

20164
HK$’000
F&T
438,936

N/A 73 F
259,565

Revenue from LED backlight.

ek

Revenue from sourcing business.

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total

* RELEDEJtH W -
o REREEEB RS o

= HERERRMYEBEAKRBENSEAR

revenue of the Group. 10% °
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. EFEERRA
2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHT
Interest expenses on: ATEEMFERAY
— bank borrowings —iRITEK 24,271 22,348
— corporate bond —NRESH 200 163
— finance leases —BEHE 175 355
24,646 22,866
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. RSB

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x FAT

Current income tax SHIFTISH

PRC Enterprise Income Tax H Bl {2 PTIS AR

— Current year —ARFE

— Over-provision in respect of prior years —BAFEBERE
Deferred taxation (Note 25) IR A (M17E25)
Total income tax expense for the year FEASHAS A%

9,447 3,612
(2,390) (3,966)
7,057 (354)
(1,055) 737
6,002 383

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: 25%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited* (12 &% Y 8| XY ) B IR A &) and Huizhou Wai Chi
Electronics Company Limited* (B M & &% 8 R A7), were
accredited as high-tech enterprises. They are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% for both years.

*

For translation purpose only

RERSHERABRIEE ([RBRL
BB DRARER - AEEHABMNFE
EREMNEBREZEESNEMMASEH -

AN AREERE E2017F 22016512 A
318 IE FEWET(IARNEEFERA
FERTANE - MAEETEELTEFE
TR -

RIEP B EMERE ([ REREHE])
REMBREBRIESD - REZE2017F
12A318ILFE - AR AN EA25%
(20164 : 25%) °

R BMERERNER - ARERKE
RARERECRIDER AT RBMNES
ETARARENESDIRMEE - 7]
RMEFERAZEBREHREI5. °
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

10. FrigHip (%)

FEMSEHAX RS BERIRERBA
MEBERDT -

as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FAT
Profit before tax BR 75 B AR 28,332 6,782
Tax at domestic income tax rate of 25% EBIR TS B R 25% 5T E /Y
(2016: 25%) FRE (20164 : 25%) 7,083 1,695
Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC FREEEH R E (4,643) (2,082)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries Hib Rl AR & ERMB AR
operating in other jurisdictions TRFENZE 1,804 809
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R LA A ok -7
for tax purposes 585 1,253
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBIMARNB R E
purposes (68) (149)
Additional tax deduction for research and HEE R RN IR
development (1,008) (1,185)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIEBEORIE L 3,027 2,001
Tax effect of other temporary differences REERE M E R Z R
not recognised M2 1,619 2,135
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AT RERNTIAEE
recognised (7) (128)
Over-provision in respect of prior years B FEREERE (2,390) (3,966)
Income tax expense for the year FEAEHAS 6,002 383
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 25. BRI BN FFIEE A 25 o
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e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. FEFIE
2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFi#n FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after FEFERRRGIA) T3

charging (crediting): BIRRER
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12(a)) FE2M<E (MIFE12(0) 6,174 5,380
Salaries and allowances (excluding directors’ % K2BE(TEEEEE)

emoluments) 148,225 171,470
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RGBT EER(TREES)

(excluding directors) 10,835 10,999
Total staff costs BT 165,234 187,849
Auditor’s remuneration 1% A = B 975 935
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR H & SRIA 8 889 899
Amortisation of bond issue expense BB TR S 8 40 36
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) b H E5ia (e ) 558 8,205 (1,662)
Amounts of inventories recognised as HRAFAXNFESRE

expenses (included in cost of sales) (T ASHERA) 1,459,129 1,160,336
Write-down of inventories (included in other WO B (FrAH ML)

operating expenses) (Note) (BF5E) 7,439 16,739
Reversal of allowance on inventories FEREBRR (G AEAMIA

(included in other income and other gains) R E AU RS ) (2,720) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥1% - BiE K& EITE 37,658 39,422
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables U BR 7k & E Ath FE KR IE HY

(included in other operating expenses) BEEEGTAEMLERT) 11,276 1,715
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in 128 [0] Tk 1 LK BR 5% % L Ath FE LA R IR

respect of trade and other receivables ERRBESEGTAEM

(included in other income and other gains) WA R E Atp 25 ) (1,076) (599
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB K&

equipment, net 518 558 690 216
Loss on write-off of property, plant and W - BE M EEE

equipment 55 24
Minimum lease payments paid under YIHQEREET

operating lease on premises EXH&EHEERE 10,155 6,445

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, a provision of approximately MizE : BZE2017F12A31 BILFE @ B AEE

HK$7,439,000 (2016: approximately HK$16,739,000) was made for
write-down of obsolete inventories that are no longer suitable for use in

production or saleable in the market.
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AREEREMSHEENREFEELM
SBET IR B 497,439,000/8 7T (20164 : 49

16,739,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. % - TREZRESHS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EBRITHREAREMS
emoluments 5B A R A E B 5%
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2016: (20164 : 94 ) T = AT BURE A T
nine) directors and the chief executive officer of the Group c NS

during the year were as follows:

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
UiEs BUFHTES
Ms. Yiu Ms. Yong
KwanYu  Mr.Chen  JianHui
Mr.Yiu  Mr.Chen (Salesand Wei Wu (Deputy ~ Mr.Peng Mr. Au
For the year ended ChiTo Chung  Marketing  (Financial General Jian Yeung  Mr.Chen Mr.Ho

31 December 2017 (Chairman) ~ Po(CEQ)  Manager) Controller)  Manager) (Notei) ~ TinWah Kwok Wang Chi Wai
HaEmLt
WEERE REREE (BERTE RENEE EREgr  WRgt  BERE Ok
HENITERNALER (TR) (THES) RREE) (MKEE) (GIEEE) () b3 i3 it
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
Tén TRr TEn  TEn  TEn  fEn TR 0 TR TEn  TEn

Emoluments pid or receivablen - SEE SRR (&3 ALA,
respectof aperson's senices  EMBAFNEH)ERf
asadrector, whetherofthe  FATHFALENE
Company or its subsidiary 53

undertaking
Fees e - - - - - - 240 144 144 528
Other emoluments Efte
Selaries e 3,050 1,300 97 242 167 - - - - 5,556
Contrution to efrement RIVEHEEI
benefits scheme 18 18 18 6 30 - - - - 90

3,068 12318 815 48 197 - 240 144 144 6,174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (continued)

12. B - TERRERESHE

(#)

(a) EERITHRAHKMS(F)

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HER BUHTES
Ms. Yiu Ms. Yong
KwanYu  Mr.Chen Jian Hui
Mr.Yu  Mr.Chen  (Salesand Wei Wu (Deputy ~ Mr. Peng Mr. Au
For the year ended ChiTo ChungPo  Marketing  (Financial General Jian Yeung  Mr.Chen Mr. Ho
31 December 2016 (Chairman) (CEO)  Manager)  Controller) ~ Manager) (Note) ~ TinWah Kwok Wang Chi Wai Total
HERRL
HEREE WELEE (BERTR REREE ERERT  PERE BRRE REZ %R
HE016F12A31ALLER (FR) (fles) %EER) (hex) (Regs) () b3 pi3 i3 At
HK§000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000
Thn  Tér  TEr  TEr TR TEr  TEr TR TEr  TEn
Emoluments paid or receivable SiEZRE(ERHALE
in respect of a person’s SEMBLARNEE)
services as a director, BXZATS
whether of the Companyor A LTEMEIEE
its subsidlary undertaking
Fees ik - - = - - - 20 144 144 528
Other emoluments Afie
Salaries e 2,481 1,200 726 211 168 - - - - 4,786
Controution o retirement ~ REKBFIEHEIER
benefts scheme 18 18 18 6 6 - - - - 66
2499 1218 744 27 174 = 240 14 w530

Note i: Appointed on 25 November 2015 and resigned on 16 January
2017

Apart from Mr. Peng Jian, who agreed not to receive any
emoluments agreed under the service agreement, none of
the directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
paid by the Group during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Mr. Chen Chung Po is also the chief executive officer of the
Company and the emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

There were no performance related incentive payments to
the directors and chief executive officer during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

BfiaEi : 2015411 A25 A EZR T 2017
1 F16 B BHE

RELZE2017F KX20165F12 A31H It
FE - BERELERETREUEM AR
BWHA TRTAM S - BIEESR
Zol AENEE AT -

BREEFE AL TAARNRBTRAE, - £
X BN D BIEA BREETITHAE
BATTREIR OB

REZ2017F K20165FE12 A31H Ik
FE o WESNERRHHESTE
ERITHBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. 5 - TRRHERESHS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#8)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the HZE2017F12A31BLEE » A&
Group, three (2016: three) were directors or chief executive BRAZEHE AR =%(2016
officer of the Company for the year ended 31 December F:ZR)BEARAESHITHE
2017. The emoluments of these directors are included in H -ZFEZENWEE R EXHF
the disclosures in Note 12(a) above. The emoluments of the 12 E - HE2017F12831H 1k
remaining two (2016: two) individuals for the year ended 31 FE - BTMA (20165 : WA ) A
December 2017 were as follows: THBET ¢
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT
Salaries and other allowances e RHEAMERL 1,421 1,370
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R REFIFHEI LK 36 36
1,457 1,406
Their emoluments were within the following bands: ZEATHH N T TYEHE :
2017 2016
20174 20164
No. of No. of
employees employees
ESHE EEZE
Not more than HK$1,000,000 % 121,000,0007 7T 2
There were no performance related incentive payments RELE2017F K2016F 12431 H Lk
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. FE - WESFHERREHBHES -
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five REE2017F K£2016F12 A31 8 It
highest paid individuals and any of the directors and chief FE - AEEVEALEZSHAT
executives officer as an incentive payment to join or upon RAEMESUARITREHEZHHE -
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office YEBIIAZR S B sl A S B iy 79 22
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. Eh ok BEER A 1E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017%F12 A31H It FE

13. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2016: nil).

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

13. 82
B R A s 2 2 R 5 B 22017412 A 31
HIEFEZRE  BREHARENERES

IR ERIARE (20164 « &) o

14. B ZF

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T#x FAT
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per {EsTE & IERZ A A%
share pPshil 22,330 6,399
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
Weighted average number of ordinary shares s+ 8 &R K #5% 2 5
for the purpose of basic and diluted RiEr TR
eamings per share T8 216,825,000 211,032,787
Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK$ per &AEE AN &% Z F|
share) (FRBIT) 0.10 0.03

The dilutive earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - MERER

Plant and Motor Office  Leasehold Construction

machinery vehicles  equipment improvements Buildings in progress Total

BERHE RE  BOZRG HENREE BF  AEIE D

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TATL TATL TAL T TR T TATL

cosT HA
At 1 January 2016 201641 A1R 304,820 6,214 17,994 22,826 127,821 13,583 493,258
Addttions AE 10,817 750 1,917 534 - 293 14,311
Transfer g - - - 235 = (235) =
Disposals/write-off HE/Hish (18,053) (126) (88) - - - (18,267)
Exchange realignment ER AR (19,019) (253) (1,200) (1,437) (8,106) (864) (30,885)
At 31 December 2016 and H2016F12A31A &

1 January 2017 2017%181R 218,565 6,585 18,617 22,158 119,715 12,777 458417
Addttions HE 34,289 - 1,588 - - 38 35,915
Disposals/write-off e /HH (1,476) = (196) = - = (1672)
Exchange realignment EHAE 20,726 258 1,336 1,505 8,392 897 38,114
At 31 December 2017 R2017612A318 332,104 6,843 21,345 23,663 128,107 13,712 525,774

ACCUMULATED ZHITERAESE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 January 2016 #201641A1R 156,412 3,755 12,185 9,890 12,018 13,583 207,843
Provided for the year EnEfE 31,339 708 2,508 2,335 2,532 - 39,422
Eliminated on disposals/write off 118 /48 415 (6,141) (120 (1) - - - 6,342)
Exchange realignment ER A% (11,011) (147) (873) (690) 872) (861) (14,454)
At31December2016and  M2016F12A31H R

1 January 2017 2017118 170,599 4,196 13,739 11,535 13,678 12,722 226,469
Provided for the year FEGHR 30,621 840 2,827 869 2,501 - 37,658
Eliminated on disposals/write-off &R 43 /i (434) = (181) = - - (615)
Exchange realignment R AR 13,060 177 1,052 793 1,050 892 17,024
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A318 213,846 5213 17,437 13,197 17,229 13,614 280,536

CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2017 R2017€12A318 118,258 1,630 3,908 10,466 110,878 98 245,238
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A31H 107,966 2,389 4,878 10,623 106,037 55 231,948
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% - MERRE (&)

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Plant and machinery 10% — 25%

Motor vehicles 10% - 33%

Office equipment 10% - 20%

Leasehold improvements 5% - 25%

Buildings Over the shorter of term of

the lease or 2.5%

As at 31 December 2017, the net book value of plant and
machinery of, approximately HK$118,258,000 includes an
amount of approximately HK$18,279,000 which have been
pledged to secure bank facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the net book value of plant
and machinery of approximately HK$118,258,000 (2016:
approximately HK$107,966,000) includes an amount
of approximately HK$5,010,000 (2016: approximately
HK$7,514,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

As at 31 December 2017, the net book value of motor
vehicles of approximately HK$1,630,000 (2016: approximately
HK$2,389,000) includes an amount of approximately HK$31,000
(2016: approximately HK$1,088,000) in respect of assets held
under finance leases.

As at 31 December 2017, buildings with carrying values
of approximately HK$110,878,000 (2016: approximately
HK$106,037,000) have been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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L - B R A A AART
S| EHRIE -

R K i s 10% —25%

8 10%—33%

WRERME 10% —20%

HEMHEEE 5% —25%

BF RS FHE2.5%
(ABEEBZE)

MR2017F12H31 8 » E L # 28R mF
{E#7118,258,000/8 T BIEIE AR T ARE
ERTTRVE R FR4918,279,000/8 7T °

R2017FE12 8318 ' BELKER®T
% {8 % 118,258,000 7% 7T (2016 4F : 49
107,966,000/8 ) B AL ERERFEN
& E £ % 45,010,000/ 7T (2016 4F : 49
7,514,000/ 7C) °

R2017F12 A31H » RERBE FEYL
1,630,000 78 7T (2016 4 : 492,389,000
BT BERABEAHESANEESEY
31,0007 7T (20164 : 41,088,000/ L) °

R2017F12 A31H - EZEHEM®
{8 #7 110,878,000 /& T ( 2016 &F : 4
106,037,000/8 7)) WIETF » tEAR TAE
ERITRE ROHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. JE{FHEFIE
Prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land held in the ENEEFRERERTEFSENHEEL
PRC and are analysed for reporting purposes as follows: - BRERERBRSTAT ¢
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T AT
Current assets MENEEE 915 856
Non-current assets IEMBENEE 37,665 36,057
38,580 36,913
As at 31 December 2017, leasehold land with carrying values MR2017F12A31H » EEWEMEMELD
of approximately HK$21,658,000 (2016: approximately 21,658,000 7T (2016 4F = #20,742,000
HK$20,742,000) have been pledged to secure banking facilities BB E LM - EAE T ARERRT
granted to the Group. A& IR -
17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2017 2016
20174F 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti&x THT
Raw materials R R 27,025 25,031
Work-in-progress 2 81,001 49,742
Finished goods BURK A 99,515 117,065
207,631 191,838
During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain inventories NEE2017FE12A31BIFEE - 5FR
which were impaired in prior years were sold. As a result, BAEEECORENTFZEEHEE - Bt -
a reversal of allowance for inventories of approximately B[O 17 S 792,720,000/ 7T (20164 -
HK$2,720,000 (2016: HK$nil) has been recognised and included T)E N AREEERWREAMUL AR E A
in other income and other gains in the current year. U5 ABE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017%F12 A31H It FE

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Impairment

Bills receivables

AR K
W R

eSS

18. FEWBRFA R 45

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBxT THET

427,722 460,863
(34,975) (23,600)

392,747 437,263

26,922 60,461

419,669 497,724

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group generally
allows a credit period of 15 to 180 days (2016: 15 to 180 days)
to its trade customers. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

At 31 December 2016, bills receivables with carrying amount
of approximately HK$11,800,000 (2017: HK$nil) have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
accumulated impairment losses presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates.

REZE2017F12A31BILFE  K&EE
—RAEBSEFETHEEHRAIE
180K (20164 : 15 180K) « ANEE I
ER RS ERE A A ER S o

MN2016F12A831H » CEREEEN A
11,800,000 7T (20174 : &) My E R =
% (EARTASERITRERIKE -

R ok o R A (R A el
2B ARE) 2530 % B EHR A
BRI R SR AT AN T o

0 to 90 days

91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365 days

0&90K
91E180K
181%£365K
HBIE365K

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x FAT
375,159 347,103
4,387 74,836
723 15,324
12,478 =
392,747 437,263
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. BRI R EIR (48)

All the bills receivables are aged within 365 days. Fr A R E R A AR BRYS /R B65 R A ©
The movements of impairment of trade receivables are as FEMERRBVREZEH AT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
At 1 January ®1A18 23,600 24,600
Impairment losses recognised on receivables i FEU R IERERR AR (E 518 9,545 1,174
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BT FEERARE
in prior years EstE o] (153) (599)
Exchange realignment HE 5 T 1,983 (1,575)
At 31 December ®12A831H 34,975 23,600
The Group has individually assessed all receivables and provided RNEE B ERIFHEFA IR - WREPT
in full for all receivables that are considered not recoverable. BRAT AU # FE U R IB BB GT IR B
Impairment losses of approximately HK$9,545,000 (2016: B RBZE2017F 1231 B L FEHER
approximately HK$1,174,000) were recognised during the year HYREE1E 40 /59,545,00078 7T (20164 ¢
ended 31 December 2017. #11,174,000%7T) °
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the aged analysis of trade 20174 K% 2016512 A31 8 » BE R A HA
receivables that was neither past due nor impaired and past due TV RH (B DA R B 280 (B N SR (B A FE LK BR
but not impaired are as follows: FERBR DTN T -

Neither Past due but not impaired

ot BB A

due nor Less than 31 to 61 to Over 90
Total impaired 30days 60days 90 days days

&it TERE LHN30X 31E60X 61F90K HEiBIOX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEL TET TAL TEL TEL TEL

At 31 December 2017 2017912 A31H 392,747 329,253 34,019 10,646 5,342 13,487
At 31 December 2016 120169512 A31H 437,263 329,156 16,501 6,721 2,683 82,202
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a B A 780 5B 74 SRk (L ) JFEE A BR 2K T A T 4 5
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history HEAREN TREREPEE -

of default.

2017 Annual Report | £ 1 45



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017%F12 A31H It FE

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEUNBR AR R =45 (48)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group RECEKERTBWER  AEEERE
considers any change in credit quality of the trade receivable ERERNEEEZEVIAREEERR
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting EREHHNTMAES - BREBTLR
date. Based on past experience, management believes that BHREEEZTWESAZHEMNRARTR
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of balances HEES  WEEERRLELERD
past due but not impaired as there has not been a significant BERE I R E SRR EI TR E R -
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. AT FRIE « IR E B
RECEIVABLES 15
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
T F&T
Deposits and other receivables e REAEWGRIA 39,680 25,845
Less: Impairment B RE (794) (1,636)
38,886 24,209
Value added tax receivables JEBUE(ERR 5,094 17,290
Prepayments for: TERTFRIA -
— Sourcing business —PREE TS 344,112 43,155
— Others —HAth 12,065 10,480
400,157 95,134

1 46 Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | {E&ZERER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. AT RIE « & R E B
RECEIVABLES (continued) IH(4E)
The movements of impairment of other receivables are as HAbEUGRIBRREZE BT
follows:
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FHTT
At 1 January ®1A1R 1,636 1,194
Impairment losses recognised on LE A U GRIR TR
other receivables REEE 1,731 541
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BT F EERARE
in prior years gictedE (923) -
Write-off of other receivables Hift 55 EL A FE SRR IE (1,731) -
Exchange realignment b 5 AR 81 (99)
At 31 December M®12A31H 794 1,636
The Group has individually assessed all other receivables and REE B ERIFTE A H U GRIE - I
provided in full for those receivables that are considered not FZFR AT Y E A R OE R EGT IR
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these B - AEBE W EBE I F AT A R
balances. Han ©
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. ATt HHERE
2017 2016
20174F 20164
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FRETT
Unlisted funds managed by FREZIRITEEZ
the bank in the PRC FLTES 23,926 -
The unlisted funds managed by the bank in the PRC with HPEZRITER I ETMESREES
underlying financial instrument mainly consist of the bank BMITAFZHEXPE 2 RITFRKRES

deposits and bonds of the PRC.

The unlisted funds carried fixed interest rate at 4.25% per R2017412A31H » ELETEEE
annum at 31 December 2017. 4.25%MEEFHEGTE o

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the available-for- MR2017F12A31H » AL EREZ
sale investment which have been pledged as security for the FHEECIEERZERER)OS
borrowings is approximately HK$23,926,000. 23,926,000/ 7T, °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/DEPOSITS 21. BIRBRITER RITER
WITH BANK/BANK BALANCES AND CASH RITEBRRIRS

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to approximately HK$144,353,000 (2016:
HK$238,467,000) as at 31 December 2017 had been pledged
to secure bank borrowings and bills falling due within one year
and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged deposits carried interest rates range from 0.3% to
2% (2016: 0.3% to 2.1%) per annum at 31 December 2017.

Deposits with bank

As at 31 December 2017, deposits with bank of approximately
HK$186,623,000, with maturity in December 2018 to February
2020, carry interest rates range from 1.95% to 3.2% per annum.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The bank balances at 31 December 2017
carried interest at the prevailing market rate ranging from 0.01%
t0 0.35% (2016: 0.01% to 0.35%).

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$48,989,000 (2016:
approximately HK$111,817,000) at 31 December 2017.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.
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B IRITER

BRI ERIEE S T IRITIEAR T
REBERITRERIFAOTER - R20174F
124318 + B E 17 5K%7144,353,000/%
7T (20164 : 238,467,000/87T) * tEB—
FAEHRITIER R ZHEMIEIF - Eit
WA EREEE -

R2017512 A31 8 » ERPEZIIEN T
0.3% Z2% (20164 : 0.3%%E2.1%) K 4F
FIRETE ©

RITFM

MN2017F 128318 |RITERL A
186,623,000/8 7T © 72018412 5 £2020
F2AHE - RN TF1.95% E3.2% ) F 7|
KRB o

RITEBRES

RITHEBRIEBESEREAERFEANES
FREIEHA A=A AR EHET
T o 2017412 A31 B ERTT A IR
RITMEFEEE M T0.01%=0.35%
(20164 : 0.01%%0.35%) °

R2017F 128318 - AEBUARER
ERIRTTAE#R K& IR © 4 /548,989,00074 7T
(20164F : #9111,817,00087T) - AR
H AR SINEE ZB 3 < R B SN B IR A R A
& - SERMEEERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22, BITERW - B ERREME
AND ACCRUALS HREUK FEREH
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT
Trade payables (Note a) FEARFR (FY3Ea) 194,387 154,167
Bills payables (Note a) fANESEAC Y, 327,304 351,656
521,691 505,823
Receipt in advance for: (Note b) TR IR - (MIRED)
— Sourcing business —FREEHE 204,017 =
— Others —HAb 3,162 3,082
Construction cost payables FERTIZIERK AR 758 1,374
Other payables E At 5RIE 18,031 14,676
Accrued expenses TEIRF X 16,020 14,285
Value added tax payables FE(SIB(ER 9,041 8,684
Government grants (Note 27) B Bh (M EE27) 11,963 -
262,992 42,101
784,683 547,924
Notes: Mi%E :
a)  The aging analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice a) RIBEHR - REZHH25EMERZRER
dates at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT :
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFi#gx FHT
0to 90 days VECIFS 143,412 119,988
91 to 180 days 912180k 41,173 26,796
181 to 365 days 181%2365K 3,075 2,756
Over 365 days #BiB365K 6,727 4,627
194,387 154,167

The average credit period on purchase of goods is from 30 days to 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies or plans for its

payables with respect to the credit timeframe.

The bills payables aged within 365 days.

b) Receipt in advance represented advance payments from customers
pursuant to the respective sales and purchase contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

23. BANK BORROWINGS 23. RITE
2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFi#n FAT
Secured: B
Trust receipts loans (Note a) SR E K (i sEa) 4,490 9,333
Other bank loans (Note b) EAnsRITE K (FisED) 251,154 222,646
255,644 231,979
Unsecured: AR
Other bank loans (Note ¢) E AR TE R (FiEC) 65,797 43,601
321,441 275,580
Bank borrowings repayable (based on FESIRI TR (IRIBE A E
scheduled repayment dates set out in loan WEMTEEERBH)
agreements):
Within one year R—FR 310,359 269,411
More than one year but not BE—FETBEMEF
exceeding two years 5,082 3,102
More than two years but not BT ETNBERRT
exceeding five years 6,000 1,875
More than five years i Rk - 1,192
321,441 275,580
Less: Carrying amount of bank borrowings B IER RS EIRE—FRE
that are not repayable within one year BEPEEREREEKRNK
from the end of the reporting period but BIERTTIE REREE (A7
contain a repayment on demand clause FAEETNET)
(shown under current liabilities) (11,082) (3,509)
Less: Carrying amount of bank borrowings that & : 7 B3R B2 —FER1E
are repayable within one year from the BERSEREREEBRNR
end of the reporting period but contain RERTTIE R EREE
a repayment on demand clause (4,918) (7,579)
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B RmE A EE TETRR —F
under current liabilities B PO (305,441) (261,832)
Amount shown under current liabilities RimE & EIE NERRFRIE (321,441) (272,920)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities RIEMEY B EIE T ETRAIFRIE - (2,660)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

23. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

a)

As at 31 December 2017, trust receipts loan with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$4,490,000 (2016: approximately HK$9,333,000)
carried fixed rate of interest of 3.81% (2016: 2.98%) per annum and
was due within 3 months.

As at 31 December 2017, other bank loans with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$179,445,000 (2016: approximately
HK$114,818,000) bore interest at floating rate and was due within
one year (2016: one to ten years). The floating rate borrowing carried
interest rates at Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) plus 0.92% to 1.1375% (2016:
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 2.25% to the rate
stipulated by the rate offered by the Peoples Bank of China (“PBOC
rate”) plus 0.0894%) per annum during the year ended 31 December
2017.

As at 31 December 2017, revolving loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$10,000,000 (2016: approximately HK$10,100,000)
bore interest at floating rate and was due within 1 year. The floating
rate borrowings carried interest at the from 1-month HIBOR/London
Interbank Borrowing Rate (“‘LIBOR”) plus 2.75% (2016: Hong Kong
dollars best lending rate (‘HKD BLR”) plus 0.5%) per annum during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, other bank loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$45,709,000 (2016: approximately HK$75,460,000)
bore interest at fixed rate and was due within 1 year. The fixed rate
borrowings carried interest ranging from 3.15% to 5.22% (2016: 3.4%
to 3.6%) per annum during the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, straight line loans with principal amount of
approximately HK$6,000,000 bore interest at floating rate and was due
within 2 years. The floating rate borrowings carried interest at HKD BLR
plus 0.15% per annum during the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, other bank loans with the principal amount
of approximately HK$10,000,000 bore interest at floating rate and
was due within 5 years. The floating rate borrowings carried interest
at 3-months HIBOR/LIBOR plus 3% per annum during the year ended
31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, machinery loans with initial principal amount
of approximately HK$33,700,000 carried floating rate ranging from
1-month HIBOR/London Interbank Borrowing Rate (“LIBOR”) plus
3.25% per annum, repayable ranging from 36 to 60 installments
commenced from the day of draw down. As at 31 December 2016,
principal amounts of approximately HK$11,088,000 remain unsettled.
The machinery loans repaid during the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, other bank loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$11,180,000 bore interest at floating rate and was
due within 1 year. The floating rate borrowings carried interest at PBOC
rate plus 1.15% per annum during the year ended 31 December 2016.
The loan has been fully repaid during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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23. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

c)

152

As at 31 December 2017, other bank loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$41,871,000 (2016: approximately HK$22,360,000)
bore interest at floating rate and was due within 1 year. The floating
rate borrowings carried interest ranging from the PBOC rate plus 0.5%
to 1.2% (2016: PBOC rate plus 1.15%) per annum during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, other bank loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$23,926,000 (2016: HK$21,241,000) bore interest at
fixed rate and was due within 1 year. The fixed rate borrowings carried
interest of 4.8% (2016: 4.25% to 5.22%) per annum during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Group’s bank borrowings at the end of each reporting period were
secured or guaranteed by the followings:

(i) As at 31 December 2017, secured banking facilities of the Group
with outstanding balances of approximately HK$6,000,000 (2016:
approximately HK$21,187,000) were secured by the assignment
of life insurance policies covering Mr. Yiu Chi To, the Controlling
Shareholder and Mr. Chen Chung Po, the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer.

As at 31 December 2016, The above facilities were also secured
by properties held by certain related companies in which either
(i) Mr. Yiu Chi To is the common director; or (i) Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu is
the common director. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the bank released the secured properties.

(i)  Asat 31 December 2017, secured banking facilities of the Group
with outstanding balances of approximately HK$179,445,000
(2016: approximately HK$111,792,000) were secured by land
and properties of a subsidiary as set out in Notes 15 and 16.

(i)  Asat 31 December 2017, secured banking facilities of the Group
with outstanding balances of approximately HK$24,490,000
(2016: approximately HK$12,360,000) were secured by a
property held by a related company, in which Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu is
the common director.

(iv)  Asat 31 December 2017, secured banking facilities of the Group
with outstanding balances of approximately HK$21,533,000
were secured by the Group’s plant and machinery as set out in
Note 15.

(v)  Asat 31 December 2017, secured banking facilities of the Group
with outstanding balances of approximately HK$24,176,000
were secured by the available-for-sale investment as set out in
Note 20.

(v As at 31 December 2016, a bank loan of the Group with
outstanding balance of approximately HK$86,640,000 was
secured by bill receivables of a subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has the undrawn trade financing
and bank loan facilities of approximately HK$452,058,000 (2016:
approximately HK$994,328,000).

23. RITE(4R)
BT ()

c)

20174128318 * RE{E%V41,871,000
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FIEN TR B A REBITHI RN FEFR0.5% =
1.2% (20165 : FRBI A RIRFTHIZEIN1.5%)
FTE o

R2017F 12 A31H + BRE B %23,926,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

24. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles
and machinery under finance leases. The average lease term of
these leases is three years (2016: three years) throughout the
year ended 31 December 2017.

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments
under finance leases and their present values were as follows:

2017
20175

RERERSEN

Amounts payable under finance

24,

Minimum lease
payments

REHEMR

MEHEEE
AEBRHBRRAERERERNEREST
SRS - MEE2017512 8318 1
BEFE ZSHENTFHHREA=F
(20165 : =4F) »

MR2017F12A31H » MEHEEBE THH
BREBENTBRERERENT :

Present value of
minimum lease payments

REHEMARERE

2016 2017 2016
20164F 20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THTL Fign THIT

leases: BIFIE :
Within one year —£R 995 3,210 974 3,051
More than one year but not HBE—FE
exceeding two years BB 92 1,164 90 1,120
More than two years, but not BIBmE - 8
exceeding five years NEBBRF - 512 - 487
1,087 4,886 1,064 4,658
Less: Future finance charges W BEREER (23) (228) N/A TEM N/A TEA
Present value of lease obligations & &EERE 1,064 4,658 1,064 4,658
Less: Amounts due within one W NREBaEET
year shown under current BETH—FR
liabilities EIEFRIE (974) (3,051)
Amounts due after one year —F &R HIRFUR 90 1,607

All obligations under finance leases of the Group bore fixed
interest rates. The effective interest rates of these obligations
under finance leases range from 5.17% to 5.39% (2016: 3.90%
t0 5.92%) per annum during the year ended 31 December 2017.
The Group’s obligations under finance leases were secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. These leases had
purchase options.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain of the Group’s
obligations under finance leases were guaranteed by certain
related companies, in which Mr. Yiu Chi To, the Controlling
Shareholder and the director of the Company have beneficial
interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H I FfE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25, JRIEFRIE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR R
Deferred tax assets RIETIEEE 6,586 5,120
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIEEE (14) -
6,572 5,120
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and RNEEFENRBEFEMRERAHNETERLEFE
movements thereof during the current and prior years: EEREZHNT :
Difference
between
depreciation
allowance Impairment
and related and
depreciation allowances
mERER
1HEAtTEE
HZEE W{E R EE &%
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2016 M201651 A1H 141 6,075 6,216
Charged to profit or loss (Note 10) B 18z5$0kk (FI5E10) (116) (621) (737)
Exchange realignment b H % - (359) (359)
At 31 December 2016 2016F12A31H 25 5,095 5,120
(Charged)/credited to profit or (RIB&EIBR), FTAEE
loss (Note 10) (FfF3E10) (39) 1,004 1,055
Exchange realignment b X - 397 397
At 31 December 2017 MR2017412 8318 (14) 6,586 6,572

As at 31 December 2017, certain subsidiaries of the Group had
aggregate unused tax losses of approximately HK$70,764,000
(2016: approximately HK$56,171,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of these unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future income stream of these subsidiaries. As at 31 December
2017, tax losses of approximately HK$34,489,000 (2016:
approximately HK$31,055,000) will be expired within 5 years.
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$110,104,000 (2016:
approximately HK$88,401,000). A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to approximately HK$43,853,000 (2016:
approximately HK$33,967,000) of such temporary differences.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining approximately HK$66,251,000 (2016: approximately
HK$54,434,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”).
As at 31 December 2017, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference attributable to the “Post-2008
Earnings” amounting to approximately HK$380,583,000 (2016:
approximately HK$336,000,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

CORPORATE BOND

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group issued a
7.5 year corporate bond with principal amount of HK$2,000,000
to an independent third party, net of direct expenses of
HK$300,000, which will be due in September 2023. The
corporate bond carried interest at a fixed rate of 8% per annum
with interest payable annually in arrears. The corporate bond is
unsecured. The effective interest rate of the corporate bond is
approximately 11.05%.

25.

26.

IEIEHTE (4])

R2017%F12 8318 » ANEE Al F1 06 Z by
1 2= %8 4 4110,104,00075 7T (2016 4F
#788,401,0008 L) - ERZ S E K%
7 8 AR #9 43,853,000 7T (2016 4F : 4
33,967,000/ 7T ) iERIEEFIEEE © H
P JE SR R 7% A] A VB 85 AT HOR D
HEEBEOAEETKR - I ERBR T4
66,251,0005% 7T (20164F : 4954,434,000
TS TC ) HERIELERTBEE o

BIERRCEMBHE - B2008F1A8
1 - BB A 5 E A EREADE
(2008 & KIEFI |) HA% B BAZTE
T o AP ZNSE B AT 12 ) 1B o] B A 1 2 R
BE MEBEREEETRETZRA
TER &R B - Btk 2017412 A 31
B @ WERGRE SRR AT 2008 F 1%
B2 T | S B 1 2= 58 49380,583,0007%8
7T (20164 : #7336,000,0005% JT ) HYiE 1T
TRIBVE L -

DEES

REZE2016F12A31B It FE K& E
83 % = 77 #1748 & ¥82,000,0007% 7T
®7.5F A RIES MR EHFI 300,000
BT 1510 2023F9 AR - ARIES
EETFE X% B (BFHRIAFH
B REEFUEER - RRESHHNE
BRI =4 511.05% ©

HK$’000

FAT

At 1 January 2016 7K201651 18 =
Current year issuance REFZ T 2,000
Direct issuance expenses BEETHRY (300)
Effective interest expenses BB 163
Interest paid during the year FREFE (127)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 H2016F12A31H &2017F1 A1H 1,736
Effective interest expenses BEEF SR 200
Interest paid during the year FREMFIE (160)
At 31 December 2017 720174124318 1,776
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27. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 27. BUFF#HBh

HK$’'000
FA&T
At 1 January 2016 R201651 A1H 32,854
Government grants utilised during the year FNEABUT D (1,332)
Exchange realignment M 5, JE B (2,026)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R2016F12 A31 H &2017F1 A1H 29,496
Government grants raised during the year FRFTIE BT 600
Government grants utilised during the year F B BT 7 B (415)
Exchange realignment b 5 SR B 2,075
At 31 December 2017 M2017512H31H 31,756

Analysis for reporting purpose as: RMEREIA
Current liabilities (Note 22) mE e E(M22) 11,963

Non-current liabilities JEMENEE

19,793
31,756

As at 31 December 2017, the government grants of
approximately HK$31,756,000 (2016: approximately
HK$29,496,000) which were designated for certain research
projects, export incentives, technical innovation, localisation
incentives and fiscal refund were granted by the PRC municipal
government. The government grants of approximately
HK$19,793,000 (2016: approximately HK$29,496,000) is stated
as non-current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
certain conditions in respect of these grants will not be fulfilled
within the next twelve months from the end of the each reporting
period. The remaining amount of HK$11,963,000 (2016: nil) is
classified as current liabilities and included in other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. IgA
The share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and AEBMR2017F K 2016F12 A31 B
2016 represented the share capital of the Company. KRAERR BRI
Number of shares Share capital
BB E B
2017 2016 2017 2016
20174 2016 20174 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRO.01BTAEER
Authorised ETE
At 1 January and 31 December M1A1B&12A31H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid BEIRER
At 1 January ®1A1H 216,825,000 200,000,000 2,168 2,000

Issue of 16,825,000 shares ataprice of ~ M201645 A LB E A3
HK$2.00 each per placing share by way SR ERE S/ 152.008 7T

of placing in May 2016 (Note a) H{B1%%£1716,825,0008%
R (Firika) - 16,825,000 - 168
At 31 December MM2A318 216,825,000 216,825,000 2,168 2168
Note: Fi%E

(@ On 6 May 2016, an aggregate of 16,825,000 new shares were placed
and issued to not less than six placees at a placing price of HK$2.00
per share in accordance with the terms and conditions of the placing
agreement entered into between the Company and Kingston Securities
Limited and Grand Cartel Securities Company Limited, independent
third parties. These shares rank pari passu with the existing shares
in all respects. The average closing price in last five trading days
immediately prior to the date of placing agreement was HK$1.84 per
share. The net proceeds are intended to be used for financing any
potential investment opportunities of the Group that may arise from
time to time. The details were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 April 2016.

29. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered
into one finance lease arrangement in respect of acquisition of
a motor vehicle with a total capital value at the inception of the
lease of approximately HK$681,000 (2017: nil).
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30. TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following table details the Group’s trade and bills
receivables which were transferred to banks by discounting
those receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group had not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these
receivables, it continued to recognise the full carrying amount
of the receivables and had recognised the cash received on the
transfer as a secured borrowing (see Note 23). These financial
assets and financial liabilities were carried at amortised cost in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

30. BREMEE

TREAIIAREEE R D RITH AR N
2R ZERBFREEHERENEE
B - ANAKEY EEBBBEZERK
HRIENEARRE MO - AR ERERZ
FRWMFIEN R BREE - WHERAZE
BRI MR 2 RS ERER(RHE23) -
ZETHEERSBRARNASEGREE

Carrying amount of transferred assets EREERAEE
Carrying amount of associated liabilities BRI B EREE

TEARRNRIZ R SERCARNER o
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
- 2,236
- (2,213)
- 23

31. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

31.

REHERE
AEBFEREBEA

REEIR - NEE NI HEESEHEE
T8 B & IR E R FRE S HIE R a0
B

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FAT

Within one year —&R 2,900 1,690
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_EFERF(BREEEMRT) 2,086 518
Over five years BidhF - 130
4,986 2,338

The Group leases certain of its factory premises and offices
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two (2016: one to
three) years with fixed rentals as at 31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group has entered
into the following significant transactions with related parties
during the year.

(@) Compensation of key management
personnel

Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and
employees of the Group as set out in Note 12, who are
considered as the key management personnel of the
Group, the Group did not have any other significant
compensations to key management personnel.

The remuneration of the directors and key management
personnel is determined by the board of directors of the
Company having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

(b) Banking facilities and bank loan

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016 certain banking
facilities and of the Group were guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi
To, the Controlling Shareholder, to the following extent:

32. EA LR B KRR

BREGAMBREEMEBOFINR S M
RERRIN  AEBCRFREREA LR
ATEARS °

(a) TEEEASNHE

BRI 12 E N TARBES
LEE(RERER/AEETEER
AB)WFHMIN  AEETEFRATE
BEABXMMEMEMEARFHE

EERETZREEABNFMBEART
EFekERMENALRELRMSE

ZBETE -

(b) SRITMERBITER
R20175 & 20165F12 A31H - B
AR A% Rk S B S AR AEBE T
RITRMEBET -

2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT

Mr. Yiu Chi To PhAE[E S A

71,778 67,076

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016 certain banking facility
of the Group were secured by a charge over land and
properties owned by related companies. Details of the
guarantees are set out in Note 23.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 2. EATR S RER(E)
BALANCES (continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions

(c) EfttBAZEALRS

2017 2016
20174 20164F
Name of company Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
NSRS REMUE T FAET
Maxtone Electronics Limited (‘Maxtone”)  Rental expenses
EERETHARAR([BEE]) izl 1,065 1,020
A director of the Company has beneficial interest in AR —REFHEBESBNERER °
Maxtone. The above transactions were at terms determined LR FEARB RBEATEERBE
and agreed by the Company and the relevant party. AMETRAETT o
33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 33. IRIKEFIEHE
The Group participates in @ Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme REBAMBEREEEREER AT
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the RNIESFTE - FEIMEERZFTEAZEGHI®
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds e BAKENEESRES - A&
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of B AR ANS%EETEERER - I
relevant costs to the scheme, which contribution is matched by RESFEHEHER - BEEREESAN
employees. The contributions from each of the employer and R ER AT A1,5008 T -
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month.
The employees of the Company’s subsidiary established in AABEF BB A RMES BB
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit R B I 258 ) B 2R B IR AR AR A E T &Y
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC KB - FEMfBARESHFENETES
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of its LERBRIREFIGT B K - AABFIRHE
payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. ® o AEEFRABANFENE—BER
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement BRI BIVEE AR EAHEIK -
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.
The Group made contributions to the retirement benefits HE2017F12A31HIEFE - AEERA
schemes of approximately HK$10,925,000 (2016: approximately RREFIETEIVE L 94 58 4Y 510,925,000
HK$11,065,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017. 77T (20164F ¢ £911,065,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #£20174 12831 B ItFE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 4. MEFTHEE2AEZ2HR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TR AEEREZTHELEZBEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash g BRBeRIIFFSEY - AREER
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for ERERMETE  REETBDELECBEE
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified FAEELABELEAGEARERERN
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from ReEREXRKIBERE °

financing activities.

Non-cash changes
FREEH
Financing Finance Government Foreign
cash cost grants exchange

1/1/2017 flows incurred recognised movements 31/12/2017
2017%  HWELRE EEE EHER 2017F
1A1H RE  BERA BB NEZE  12A318
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
Tign Tign TEx TEx TEx TEx

Bank Borrowings (Note 23)  $R47E/ R (HfzE23) 275,580 3,497 24,271 - 18,093 321,441
Corporate bond (Note 26) AalEH(KiE26) 1,736 (160) 200 - - 1,776
Government Grants BB (P22 27)
(Notes 22 and 27) 29,496 3,988 - (3,803) 2,075 31,756
Obligations under finance REREER(ME24)
leases (Note 24) 4,658 (3,769) 175 - - 1,064
31470 3556 24646 (3803 20,168 356,037
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e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. AR BB AR R
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE T8 T
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REBARKRE 135,000 135,000
Current assets mBEE
Prepayments, deposits and AR - e RHM
other receivables FEYFRIA 1,590 1,690
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL HT BB A B FIAR (@) 169,326 201,326
Bank balances and cash RITERNIRS 32,063 2,514
202,979 205,530
Current liabilities mENAE
Other payables and accruals HAu I Roa &
TEIREM 25 15
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS —FRIFT /8 A B 5RIE (@) 4,599 6,988
4,624 7,003
Net current assets MENEEFE 198,355 198,527
Total assets less current liabilities HEERNRSEE 333,355 333,527
Non-current liability FRBEE
Corporate bond RNElfESH 1,776 1,736
Net assets BERE 331,579 331,791
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital &N 2,168 2,168
Reserves i (b) 329,411 329,623
Total equity RS 331,579 331,791
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12 831 H IEF[E

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. A B A AR R (4F)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Notes: Fi3E
(@)  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, carry prevailing @ U FERTHTB A AR EE R « RIRTT
market interest rate and are repayable on demand. TS B A RBIR ERERE -
(b)  Movements in reserves b) fEEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BipiEE BitEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FHT FHT
As at 1 January 2016 72016451 A1 8 299,321 (1,811) 297,510
Loss and total comprehensive expense  4FEE1E & & Sz 4858
for the year - (543) (543)
Issue of shares by way of placing AR & 5 A BT D
(Note 28) (MizE28) 33,482 - 33,482
Share issue expense BRI A (826) - (826)
As at 31 December 2016 and MK2016F12A31H &
1 January 2017 201741 A1H 331,977 (2,354) 329,623
Loss and total comprehensive expense  GFEE1E N & L 4258
for the year - (212) (212)
As at 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 331,977 (2,566) 329,411
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 £ ZE2017F12 A31H 1L FE

36. SUBSIDIARIES 36. B E)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: KAGIMBARRFBLOT
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ML, BETRAR
WEARER R BEE RBA/iMER  AARERE REEESL  FEEE
Direct Indirect
B it
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017F 20165 2017%F 2016F
Windrider Technology The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ 100%  100% = - Investment holding
Company Limited KBRaEE B US$100 RERR
LaR100%T
Techwide Management The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares = - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited HERLHE BE US$100 RERR
E@Rk100%ET
Wai Chi Electronic Technology Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - - 100%  100% Investment holding
Management Company Limited BB B HK$100,000 REER
BEETHRERERAR L8R 100,0007T
Ecosquare Energy Company Limited The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares = - 100%  100% Investment holding
EERAEE BA US$100 RERR
LER100%T
Wai Chi Energy Services Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares = - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited Bk B HK$100,000 REER
BEHEREERAR L1#A%100,000%8 7T
Alled Solution Company Limited The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares — - 100%  100% Investment holding
RERUEE B US$100 RERR
LAER100%T
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36. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. B AT (4&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
SR/ BERTREE
WEAREE RALME SEME BA/iMEE  AOREERE REEESL 0 TEEE
Direct Indirect
EE 3f:

2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 20165 20175 20165

Wai Chi Group (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares = - 100% 100% Investment holding
BEEEARAR B 6 HK$135,100,000 REAR
LRk
135,100,000/
Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Trading of LED
EEXEERLF B B HK$62,380,000 backlight and
LiEmk lighting products
62,380,000 T BELEDALR
RAER
Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen) ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
Limited* (Note a) H H RMB97,128,000 of LED backlight
EFHER)BRAR (MFa) &R and lighting
AR %97,128,00070 products and
sourcing business
BUERHELEDE K
RERERREH
R
Sanxia Wai Chi Opto Technology The PRC The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Provision of LED
(Yichang) Limited* (Note b) # H RMB30,000,000 lights installation
“REEHE(EE)BRAR HREX servioes
(Miztb) AR 30,000,0007 1R HELEDERRR
RERT
Shenzhen Wai Chi Lighting The PRC The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited* (Note b # i RMBS5,000,000 sale of LED lighting
MmEFRABRARFHD) FER products
AR%5,000,0007C HEREHELED
RAEm
Beiing Senhuan Energy Management ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Energy management
Company Limited* (Note b H H RMBS5,800,000 business
SRR BE AR AR A () HMER HREREHK
AR#5,800,0007C
Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics The PRC The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
Company Limited* (Note b) i i RMB144,113,349 of LED backlight
EMESEFAR AR (Fizto) AR and lighting
ARE144,113 3497 products
BERHELEDA K
RERHRER
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36. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. B A S (&
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ML,/ BRITRAR
WELFEH RIULME SENY Ba/ #MER  AREARERE RREEAL  TEER
Direct Indirect
H# it
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 20165 20175 20165
Wai Chi Jingmi Hardware (Huizhou) The PRC The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Manufacture of
Company Limited* (Note b) # M US$3,720,000 moulds
RHEEZLLZB(EN)ERAR &R BERA
(Fit3to) 3,720,000% T
BINEERERRERAF The PRC The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note b)(FiEb) H H RMB4,838,290 of LED backlight
HREX products
AR %4,838,2007C BUERAELED
EXER
MITRIEESRHERAA The PRC The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Fund centre
(Note b)(Fiztb) i i RMB5,000,000 el
AR %5,000,0007C

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of both years.

Notes:

(@  The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

(b)  These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC

*

For translation purpose only
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MR E

Percentage
interest of
Property the Group Floor Area Usage as at 31 December 2017
AEEEEERS
W ZEAL H#E M2017F12A31BzH#R
(sq.ft)
(FAR)
An Industrial complex located in Sanxu 100% 1,807,709  Occupied by the Group for industrial
Village and Meihua Village, Luoyang use
Town, Boluo County, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
— (AR B ERE BN EELESGHE REBGREIERS
=HRNRIBTER 2 TER
A Land Parcel located in Yanjiahe Village, 100% 595,595  Planning for construction of office

Xiaoita, Yiling District, Yichang, Hubei
Province, the PRC

— IR A BIRIE A B BT RER/NRE
BRSO 2tk

and warehouse for leasing purpose

AEIEERAE R R EEH AR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20176 20164F 2015% 20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Figx FET FET TET TET
(restated)
(s &7)
Revenue HER 1,677,966 1,321,601 1,100,491 1,165,579 894,033
Cost of sales HERA (1,459,129) (1,160,336) (854,979) (889,736) (668,706)
Gross profit EF 218,837 161,265 245512 275,843 225327
Operating expenses EERA (190,505) (154,483) (283,173) (194,255) (155,768)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREEFE/(518) 28,332 6,782 (37,661) 81,588 69,559
Income tax expenses AR (6,002) (383) (1,106) (20,395) (14,369)
Profit/(loss) for the year EENE/(B8) 22,330 6,399 (38,767) 61,193 55,190
Earnings/(loss) per share BREHN/(B8)
Basic and diluted (HK$) EAREE(ET) 0.10 0.03 (0.19) 0.39 0.66
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Non-current assets EnBEE 289,489 273,125 330,995 356,524 340,484
Current assets mEEE 1,494,996 1,176,360 1,317,509 1,252,401 842,349
Current liabilities mEAE (1,116,804) (832,010) (1,032,180) (919,442) (727,832)
Total assets less current BEERTEEE
liabilities 667,681 617,475 616,324 639,483 455,001
Non-current liabilities FREas (21,673) (35,499) (39,886) (37,252) (34,548)
Net assets BERE 646,008 581,976 576,438 652,231 420,453
Capital and reserves BEARfHE
Share capital A 2,168 2,168 2,000 2,000 101
Reserves e 643,840 579,808 574,438 650,231 420,352
Total equity oy 646,008 581,976 576,438 652,231 420,453
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